CITY OF MEDINA
AGENDA FOR COUNCIL MEETING

May 22, 2023

Medina City Hall - Council Rotunda
7:30 p.m.

Call to Order.
Roll Call. _

Reading of minutes. (May 8, 2023)

Reports of standing cox_nmittees.

Requests for council acilion.

Reporis of municipal officers.

Notices, communications and petitions.

Unfinished business.

Introduction of visitors,
(speakers limited to 5 min.}

Introduction and consideration of ordinances and resolutions.
Motion to suspend the Rules requiring three readings on the following ordinances and resolutions: Ord,

93-23, Ord. 94-23, Ord. 95-23, Ord. 96-23, Ord. 97-23, Ord. 98-23

Ord. 93-23
An Ordinance repealing Ordinance No. 204-21, passed December 13, 2021, and readopting a new

Purchasing Card Policy for the City of Medina.

Ord. 94-23
An Ordinance authorizing the Job Creation Grant Agreement for Allfasteners USA LL.C,

Ord. 95-23
An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter into an Agreement with IamGIS for Geographic

Information Systems (GIS) Services for the City of Medina.

Ord. 96-23
An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter into an Amended Agreement to Establish the Medina

County Emergency Management Agency.




Medina City Council
May 22, 2023

Ord. 97-23
An Ordinance amending Sections V, VI, VII and VIII of the Civil Service Rules and Regulations of the

City of Medina relative to Later Transfer Applicants for Communication Operators.

Ord, 98-23
An Ordinance authorizing the expenditure to American Ramp Company for the renovation of the

Reagan Park Skatepark.

Council comments.

Adjournment.




MEDINA CITY COUNCIL
Monday, May 8, 2023

Call to Order: '
Medina City Council met in regular session on Monday, May 8, 2023 at Medina City Hall. The

meeting was called to order at 7:30 p.m. by Council President John Coyne III who also led in the
Pledge of Allegiance.

Roli Call:
The roll was called with the following members of Council, J. Hazeltine, B. Lamb, P. Rose, J.

Shields, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, and R. Haire.

Also present were the following members of the Administration: Mayor Dennis Hanwell, Greg
Huber, Keith Dirham, Nino Piccoli, Patrick Patton, Lt. Marcum, Chief Walters, Andrew Dutton,

Kimberly Marshall, Dan Gladish, and Jansen Wehrley.

Minutes:
Mr. Shields moved that the minutes from the regular meeting on Monday, April 24, 2023, as

prepared and submitted by the Clerk be approved, seconded by Mr. Shields. The roll was called .
and passed by the yea votes of B. Lamb, P. Rose, J. Shields, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, R. Haire and

J, Hazeltine.

Reporis of Standing Committees:

Finance Committee: Mr. Coyne stated the Finance Committee met prior to the Council Mecting
and will meet again on May 22nd, 2023.

Health, Safety & Sanitation Committee: Mr. Simpson stated they just held a meeting prior to
Finance today.

Public Properties Committee: Mr. Shields had no repoit.

Special Legislation Committee: Mr. Lamb has scheduled two meetings, Wednesday, May 10 at
5:00 p.m. to update the parking policy, and Monday, May 15 at 5:00 p.m. to discuss consideration
of prohibiting feeding of deer and wild animals. '

" Streets & Sidewalks Committee: Ms. Haire had no report.

Water & Utilities Committee: Ms. Hazeltine had no repot.

Emerging Technologies Committee: Mr. Rose had no report.

Requests for Council Action:

Finance Committee -

23-098-5/8 -- Budget Amendments

23-099-5/8 — Purchasing Card Policy Update

23-100-5/8 — Job Creation Grant — Allfasteners USA LLC

23-101-5/8 — Agreement w/Kleinfelder — Administrative Services CHIP Grant
23-102-5/8 — Change of Vendor — P.O. #2022-1601 Rotunda Flooring Project — ARPA
23-103-5/8 — Use of Remaining ARPA Funds

23-104-5/8 — Agreement w/ TamGIS — GIS System Renewal — Engineering




Medina City Council
May 8, 2023

23-105-5/8 - Discussion Re: Collection of Signatures for Petitions
23-106-5/8 — Revise Civil Service Rules — Communication Operators Lateral Transfers

23-107-5/8 —EMA Agreement

Reports of Municipal Officers:

Dennis Hanwell, Mayor:
A. National Day of Prayer was at Cornerstone Chapel Thursday May 4™ at 6:30 as well as

various prayer stations around the 01ty from noon to 7pm.

B. Love Medina Program was Saturday and Sunday May 6 and 7™ organized by Grace
Medina Church, other churches were involved as well with a total of 900 volunteers
over the two days. All did service projects for city seniors and disabled citizens.
Appreciative of the churches in our community for working together and supporting
one another in helping with our community needs.

C. Medina Farmer’s Market will take place on Public Square starting Saturday, May 20t
through Saturday, October 7% from 9am to 1pm. Thanks to Main Street Medina for

_ organizing this ongoing event,
D. Ladies Night Out on Medina Public Square is May 11" 5 p.m. — 8:30 p.m.

Keith Dirham, Finance Director, Keith stated there are a number of items on the agenda that
originated with finance and he will address them accordingly.

Kimberly Marshall, Economic Development Director, had no report.
Greg Huber, Law Department, had no report,
Chief Kinney, Police Department, had no report.

Chief Walters, Fire Department, had no report.

Joe Toth, LST Director, stated through the month of April the Life Support Team responded to
1,128 calls for the City of Medina and for all 3 entities there were 1,664 responses.

Jansen Wehrley, Parks and Recreation Director,

Dan Gladish, Building Official, Dan informed city residents that the city does have a tall grass
and weed ordinance and is enforced through the Building department, the height is 6 inches, There

is a 3-step approach for compliance.
Nino Piccoli, Service Director, had no report.

Patrick Patton, City Engineer, stated they are about two weeks away from the concrete paving -
operations on Prospect Street. Any questions or concerns on where to park during this time please
call 330-725-8861.

2




Medina City Council
May 8, 2023

Andrew Dutton, Planning and Community Development Director, had no report.

Notices, communications and petitions:
There were none.

Unfinished Business:
There was none.

Introduction of Visitors:
There were none.

Introduction and consideration of ordinances and resolutions.

Mr. Shields moved to suspend the rules requiring three readings on the following ordinances and
resolutions: Res. 89-23, Ord. 90-23, Ord. 91-23, Ord. 92-23, seconded by Mr. Simpson. The roll
was called and approved by the yea votes of P. Rose, J. Shields, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, R. Haire,

J. Hazeltine, and B, Lamb.

ReS- 89'23
A Resolution accepting the donation from Larry and Francine Johns of “The Helios

Project”, an interactive display of our Selar System to be installed along the Champion
Creek Multipurpose Trail. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No.
089-23, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Mayor spoke of the gracious donation of the interactive display
of our solar system that will be installed along the Champion Creek Multi-Purpose Trail. Mr. Johns
gave a brief description and brought a display of one of the planets (Neptune). Mr. Coyne, Mr.
Shields and Ms. Haire all thanked the Johns family for their donation. Mr. Simpson stated they
were stars in the city! The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No, 089-23 passed by the yea
votes of J. Shields, D. Simpson, I. Coyne, R. Haire, J. Hazeltine, B. Lamb, and P. Rose.

Ord. 90-23
An Ordinance authorizing the purchase of one (1) 2023 Ford F-150 Pickup Truck from

National Auto Fleet Group for the Parks Department. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of
Ordinance/Resolution No. 090-23, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Mr. Shields moved that the
emergency clause be added to Ordinance/Resolution No. 090-23, seconded by Mr. Simpson.
Mayor stated this will be replacing a 2009 GMC Truck. Emergency is needed since the National
Auto Fleet Group informed them that the order cut-off was August 2022. The roll was called on
adding the emergency clause and was approved by the yea votes of D. Simpson, J. Coyne, R.
Haire, J. Hazeltine, B. Lamb, P. Rose, and J. Shields. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution
No. 090-23 passed by the yea votes of J. Coyne, R. Haire, J. Hazeltine, B. Lamb, P. Rose, J.

Shields, and D. Simpson.

Ord. 91-23 _
An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter into an agreement with Mark Klaus

Properties, LLC for the use of the parking lot area located on Permanent Parcel No. 028-
19B-20-103. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 091-23, seconded

3




Medina City Council
May 8, 2023

by Mr. Simpson. M. Shields moved that the emergency clause be added to Ordinance/Resolution
No. 091-23, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Mr. Dutton stated the agreement will be for 5 years and
city will continue to maintain the lot. Emergency is due since current agreement expires May 18%.
The roll was called on adding the emergency clause and was approved by the yea votes of J.
Hazeltine, B. Lamb, P. Rose, J. Shields, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, and R. Haire. The roll was called
and Ordinance/Resolution No. 091-23 passed by the yea votes of I. Hazeltine, B. Lamb, P. Rose,

J. Shields, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, and R. Haire.

Ord. 92-23
An Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 221-22, passed December 12, 2022, (Amendments

to 2023 Budget) Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 092-23,
seconded by Mr. Simpson. Mr. Dirham stated these are mostly transfers to cover various grants
and some additions for the airport. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 092-23
passed by the yea votes of B. Lamb, P. Rose, I. Shields, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, R. Haire and J.

Hazeltine.

1

Council comments :
Mr. Simpson again thanked the Johns family. Dennie spoke of hatred having no place in our

country, reminded everyone to be kind to one another.

Mr. Rose thanked the Johns family, Medina Kids Care, and his daughter-in-law Rusty Rose for
her effort with a fund raiser for the County Home residents.

Mr. Lamb stated he appreciates the Helios Project. He congratﬁlated the Meow Fix non-profit
organization for a great fund raiser.

Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:51 pm.

Kathy Patton, Clerk of Council

John Coyne, President of Council




RCA 23-099-5/8

ORDINANCE NO. 93-23
AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 204-21,
PASSED DECEMBER 13, 2021, AND READOPTING A NEW
PURCHASING CARD POLICY FOR THE CITY OF MEDINA.

Ordinance 204-21, passed December 13, 2021, adopted a new Purchasing Card

WHEREAS:
Policy for the City of Medina.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF MEDINA, OHIO:

SEC. 1: That Ordinance No. 204-21, passed December 13, 2021, is hereby repealed.

SEC. 2: That a new Purchasing Card Policy is hereby adopted for the City of Medina.

SEC. 3: That a copy of the updated Policy is marked Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a
part hereof.

SEC. 4: That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law.

SEC. 5: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed by
law.

PASSED: SIGNED:

President of Council

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Clerk of Council
SIGNED:

Mayor

Ord. 93-23




Ord. 93-23 —Exh. A

CITY OF MEDINA
PURCHASING CARD POLICY

OVERVIEW

The objective of the City of Medina’s Purchasing Card Program is to improve the way we conduct business.
It will allow us to obtain favorable pricing by enabling us to purchase from vendors who do not accept
purchase orders, or expedite a transaction in an emergency situation. This program is designed to be easy
to use, however, appropriate controls must be in place to ensure the ongoing success of the program.

This program is not intended to avoid ar bypass current purchasing and payment procedures (i.e. purchase
order and payment by check direct to vendor). Rather, the program enhances the existing process.
Policies and procedures cannot cover every issue, exception or contingency that may arise in the use of
purchasing cards, therefore, users should use common sense and good judgement in the use of
government resources. City funds are committed each time a purchasing card is used, a responsibility
that cannot be taken lightly.

GUIDELINES

1.

Purchasing card transactions are hereby authorized for in-store, internet, telephone, fax or mail
order acquisitions, only when a purchase order is not accepted by the vendor or in emergency
situations where use of a purchasing card would be more efficient. You must have a purchase
order in place to sign out the card from the Finance Department.

The Finance Director shall be responsible for the issuance, monitoring, retrieval and general
oversight of compliance with this Purchasing Card Policy.

Purchasing cards shall be in the name of City of Medina. Transactions made on behalf of the City
are ONLY to be made by City employees authorized by the Finance Director to do so. Authorized
user lists will be maintained in the Finance Department.

Purchasing cards shall only be used for the purchase of goods and services that are the official
business of the City of Medina.

Ali purchasing cards issued to the City of Medina will be maintained in the Finance Department.
Should it become necessary for an employee to use a card for the purchase of goods or services
as part of official City business, the employee shall sign out the card providing his/her name,
department, date of use, vendor, reason for purchase, purchase order number and date of card’s

return.

Because of short payment terms and costly late fees and interest charges, a purchase order must
be on file in the Finance Department BEFORE the purchasing card is signed out and used.




10.

11.

12,

13,

14.

5,

16.

Ord. 93-23 —£xh. A

When providing the vendor with an email address for a purchasing card transaction, the employee
must use accountspavable@medinaoh.org as the primary contact so that transactions and
amounts can be monitored. Any emails received will then be forwarded to the employee who

made the purchase for receipt processing.

The employee needs to ensure that sales tax is not charged at the point of sale — the City cannot
pay sales tax. The employee is responsible for getting the vendor to remove any sales tax applied
in error. If sales tax is not removed, the employee will be required to reimburse the City for that
amount. Failure to reimburse will result in payroll deduction for the tax amount,

Documentation itemizing the goods and services purchased with City purchasing cards shall be
required for all transactions. Obtaining appropriate receipts is the responsibility of the user.
Acceptable receipts must be itemized and contain vendor name, dollar amounts, description of
all items purchased, and date of purchase. This may be a signed credit card slip, sales receipt,
invoice showing payment was made, purchase confirmation email, or a combination thereof. If
this documentation cannot be provided, the employee shall reimburse the City for the entire
amount of the purchase. Failure to reimburse will result in payroll deduction for the entire
amount. Habitual failure to turn in appropriate receipts will result in termination of purchasing

card privileges.

City purchasing cards shall not be used for personal use, cash advances, or other vendor category
exclusions {i.e. alcohol, tobacco products, etc.). See “Card Controls and Limits” below.

Any refunds from purchasing card sales must be credited back to the purchasing card.

All benefits derived from the use of purchasing cards shall become the property of the City of
Medina.

A purchasing card must be used for hotel stays so the City avoids paying a majority of the taxes.
However, the card is only to be used for the room rate and any parking fees. No room service,
mini bar food or drink, or entertainment expenses, or anything else other than room rate and
parking fees are to be charged to the card.

Meals may not be charged to the card.

If an employee experiences denials when using a City purchasing card, the employee shall
immediately notify Accounts Payable, who will then investigate the denial,

Employees shall be responsible for the protection and custody of the purchasing card while in
their possession. Employees shall not knowingly post or otherwise make public available card
data that could potentially result in fraud or unauthorized charges. If a card is lost or stolen, the
employee shall immediately notify Accounis Payable. Repeated card loss may result in
termination of card privileges.




Ord. 93-23 —Exh. A

17. The Medina Municipal Court is to adhere to said policy per the Ohio State Auditor’s Office.

18. Any City employee who violates the provisions of this Purchasing Card Policy shall be subject to
disciplinary action, up to and including discharge and/or civil or criminal action.

CARD CONTROLS AND LIMITS
The purchasing cards have embedded limits and restrictions. Each time a card is used, the vendor is

required to obtain authorization from the banking network. This ensures the purchase is within the
program controls and {imits established to safeguard against possible improper and/or fraudulent use.

The following is an outline of the types of embedded restrictions on the cards. They are designed to
protect you and the City of Medina:

1. Spending limits:
* Monthly purchase limit - $4,000 per card; $10,000 City wide.
s The splitting of purchases into separate transactions to avoid either of these
requirements is strictly prohibited.
s Board of Control approval is required to increase any limits,

2. City of Medina purchasing cards are not to be used for items such as:

s Personal purchases
+ Cash advances, ATM transactions, and other cash related activities

s Entertainment expenses
¢ Alcohol and tobacco

| have read the City of Medina purchasing card policy and agree to abide by all of the requirements.

{(Employee name — printed)

(Employee signature)

(Date)




WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

SEC. 1:
SEC, 2:
SEC. 3:

SEC. 4:

SEC, §:

PASSED:

RCA 23-100-5/8

ORDINANCE NO. 94-23

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE JOB CREATION GRANT
AGREEMENT FOR ALLFASTENERS USA LLC.

Ordinance No. 154-07, passed September 24, 2007, adopted a Job Creation Grant
Program for the City of Medina, Ohio to provide incentives to businesses to retain, create
and expand employment opportunities within the City of Medina without utilizing tax
revenues or impacting negatively upon the local school system; and

Ordinance No., 194-14, passed November 24, 2014, adopted new guidelines effective
December 24, 2014; and

As part of said Job Creation Grant Program, a Business Development Committee was
established to review applications and annually review each approved grant for adherence

to their grant agreement; and

The Business Development Committee recommended the attached grant agreement for
Allfasteners USA LLC.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MEDINA, OHIO: '

That the Job Creation Grant Agreement #JCG25 for Allfasteners USA LLC is hereby
authorized.

That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute all documentation associated with the
Grant.

That a copy of the Job Creation Grant Agreement is marked Exhibit A, attached hereto
and incorporated herein.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council,
and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such
formal action, were in mectings open to the public, in compliance with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed by law.

SIGNED:

ATTEST:

President of Council

APPROVED:

Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Mayor

Ord. 94-23




2V, P

R’!%h‘ﬂ} 23
PLEASE REVIEW THE EMPLOYMENT AND PAYROLL NUMBERS FOR CONSISTENCY WITH
YOUR APPLICATION EFORM. THESE NUMBERS WILL BECOME YOUR COMPANY'S
COMMITMENT TO THE CITY OF MEDINA.

EXHIBIT A GRANT# JCG25-Allfasteners USA LLC
(Administrative Only)

JOB CREATION GRANT AGREEMENT

This Agreement made and entered into by and between the CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO,
a municipal corporation, with its main offices located at 132 North Elmwood Avenue,
Medina, Ohio 44256 {hereinafter  referred to as “Medina”) and
Allfasteners USA, LLC with its main offices located at 953 Lake Rd, Medina, OH 44256

(hereinafter referred to as “Company), and is dated as of

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Medina has encouraged the creation and retention of new job
opportunities throughout the City of Medina; and

WHEREAS, Allfasteners USA LLC is desirous to acquire a building and complete
renovations to increase their warehousing capacity in the City of Medina located at 950 Lake .
Rd, Medina, Chio to create 15 new fuli-time employment opportunities (hereinafter
sometimes referred to as the “PROJECT”} within the boundaries of the City of Medina,
provided that the appropriate development incentives are available to support the economic

viability of said PROJECT; and

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Medina, Ohio by Ordinance No. 154-07 adopted
September 25, 2007 created the lob Creation Grant Program pursuant to Article XVIil,
Section 3 and Article VIII, Section 13 of the Ohio Constitution; and

WHEREAS, the City of Madina, having the appropriate authority for the stated type of
program, is desirous of providing Allfasteners USA LLC with incentives available for the

development of the PROJECT; and

WHEREAS, Allfasteners USA LLC has submitted a proposed Agreement application
(herein attached as Exhibit Al) to the City of Medina (said application hereinafter referred to

as “Application”); and

WHEREAS, Allfasteners USA LLC has remitted the required application fee of
$ 500.00 made payable to the City of Medina; and

WHEREAS, the Business Development -Committee of the City of Medina has
investigated the application of Allfasteners USA LLC and has recommended the same to
Medina City Council on the basis that Allfasteners USA LLC is qualified by financial
responsibility and business experience to create employment opportunities in the City of
Medina and improve the economic climate of Medina; and




NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter contained
and the benefit to be derived by the parties from the execution hereof, the parties herein

agree as follows:

1. Description of the Project.

A. Allfasteners USA LLC shall purchase and remodel a building at 950 Lake Rd,
Medina, Ohio

2. Project Investment.

A. The PROJECT will involve a total investment, plus or minus 10%, by the
Property Owner of $4,405,000 (dollars) the PROJECT.

B. The PROJECT will involve a total investment, plus or minus 10%, by
Expert Crane, Inc. as follows:

1. Land S 845,250,060
2. Acquisition of Buildings 5 2,829,750.00
3. Improvements to Existing Buildings S 250,000.00
4. Furniture & Equipment S 30,000.00
5. Inventory $ 450,000.00
TOTAL $ 4,405,000.00
C. Improvements to facility will begin approximately May 1, 2023 and will be

completed approximately May 1, 2026.

3. Job Creation and Retention.

A Allfasteners USA LLC shall create in the City of Medina within a time period
not exceeding 36 months after the occupation of the aforesaid facility, the
equivalent of 15 new full-time permanent job opportunities in the City of

Medina.

1) Allfasteners USA LLC schedule for hiring permanent full-time employees is

as follows:
Number of iobs
Year New to Medina
1 4 (2023)
2 5 {2024)
3 6 (2025}




The job creation period begins approximately May, 2023 and all jobs will be
in place by May, 2026.

The Company currently has 62 employees in the City of Medina. In
total, the Company has__62__full-time permanent employees in the State of

Ohio.

The increase in the number of employees new to the City of Medina will
result in approximately $675,000.00 of additional annual payroll in the City

_if Medina when the projected maximum employment level is achieved.

4. Issuance of Grant.

A.

The City of Medina hereby grants a Job Creation Grant based upon the
creation of new payroll and jobs in the City of Medina, and the
implementation of the PROJECT, according to the schedules contained herein

in Section 4(C}.

Years Amount of Grant as a Percentage
Pavroll Taxes New to Medina
3 40%

Funding for the grant issued herein shall only be from the following non-tax
revenue sources: interest income, permit fees, activity fees, service charges,
and tax incentive application and monitoring fees.

For purposes of calculating the amount of the grant, the new payroll upon
which the grant is based may not exceed 25% above the maximum payroll
projected in Section 3(D) above. The grant amount shall be based on the
current 1.25% income tax rate, The maximum grant amount in any year shall
be $4,218.75 (maximum NEW PAYROLL projection x 125% X 1.25% x 40% of

grant)

To receive a grant in any given year, Allfasteners USA LLC must retain full
time permanent jobs existing in Medina prior to the Agreement.




(1)

(2)

5. Grant Payments.

If Allfasteners USA LLC does not achieve at least 90% of new payroll
and employment projections, Allfasteners USA LLC shall receive
reduced incentives according to the schedule below:

% of New Payroll Amount of Grant as a Percentage
Projection Achieved of Payroll Taxes New to Medina
90-100% full grant
85-89% reduce grant by 5%

(Ex.: 40% grant reduced to 35%)
80-84% reduce grant by 10%

{(Ex.: 40% grant reduced to 30%)
75-79% reduce grant by 15%
Less than 75% no grant for that year; and

i Allfasteners USA LLC fails to meet 75% of new payroll and new
employment projections in any given year, the grant shall not be

awarded for that year.

New payroll is defined as that amount in excess of the amount in
Section 3{E) above.

A. Initial Grant Payment.

(1)

(2)

(3)

Year 3 projections must be met by December 31, 2025. The initial
grant payment shall be made by approximately July 1, 2026 {following
year), or Tax Incentive payments will commence upon the fulfiliment
of job creation and payroll obligations provided that Alifasteners USA
LEC files its Reconciliation of City income Tax Withheld Form S5-W3 by
February 28, 2026, at the latest or February 28, 2024 at the earliest.
Reconciliation is confirmed by the City of Medina Finance Department.

If the project start date or occupancy of the project facility is delayed,
Year 1 may be extended to the following year and the Year 1
projections deadline adjusted accordingly, upon written request by
Allfasteners USA LLC to the Economic Development Director, provided
that the extension is approved by the Economic Development Director
with notice to the Business Development Committee.

If the project or occupancy of a project facility begins in the third or
fourth quarter of the year and Allfasteners USA LLC is not able to
meet its Year 1 projections by December 315 of that year, Year 1 will
be considered the first full year of occupancy, and the first grant
payment will occur in the year following the first full year of the

project or occupancy of the project facility.




B. Timing of Annual Grant Payments. Annual grant payments shall be
made by June 30" of the following year, provided that Allfasteners
USA LLC files its Reconciliation of City Income Tax Withheld Form 5-W3
by February 28" and reconciliation is confirmed by the City of Medina
Finance Department. If Allfasteners USA LLC requests an extension
for filing of its S-W3 form, the City of Medina shall make the grant
payment within three months of the extended filing date. It is the
responsibility of Allfasteners USA LLC to advise the Economic
Development Director of the filing extension.

C. Use of Grant Payments. Grants shall be allocated by Allfasteners USA LLC for
land acquisition, building acquisition, purchase of machinery/equipment,
purchase of furniture/fixtures, and/or other non-construction related and
non-installation related costs of the project.

. Payment of Taxes and Filing Reports and Returns. Allfasteners USA LLC shall pay all
taxes and shall file all tax reports and returns as required by law. If Allfasteners USA
LLC fails to pay such taxes or file such returns and reports, all incentives granted.
under this Agreement are terminated beginning with the year for which such taxes
are charged or such reports or returns are required to be filed and thereafter. .

Information for Annual Review. Allfasteners USA LLC shall timely provide to the City
of Medina any information reasonably required by the City of Medina to evaluate
Allfasteners USA LLC compliance with the Agreement.

Maintenance of Grant.

A. Medina shall perform such acts as are reasonably necessary or appropriate to
effect, claim, reserve, and maintain incentives granted under this Agreement
including, without limitation, joining in the execution of all documentation
and providing necessary information to maintain the incentives granted

hereunder.

B. If for any reason the Job Creation Grant Program is discontinued, entitlements
granted under this Agreement shall continue for the number of years
specified under this Agreement, unless Alifasteners USA LLC materially fails to
fulfill its obligations under this Agreement and Medina terminates or modifies

the incentives granted under this Agreement.

Certification as to Payment of Taxes. Allfasteners USA LLC certifies that at the time
this Agreement is executed, Allfasteners USA LLC does not owe any delinquent real
or tangible personal property taxes to any taxing authority of the State of Ohio, and
does not owe delinquent taxes for which Alfasteners USA LLC is liable under Chapter
5733, 5735, 5739, 5741, 5743, 5747, or 5753 of the Ohio Revised Code, or, if such
delinquent taxes are owed, Alifasteners USA LLC currently is paying the delinquent
taxes pursuant to an undertaking enforceable by the State of Ohio or an agent or
instrumentality thereof, has filed a petition in bankruptcy under 11 U.5.C.A. 101, et
seq., or such a petition has been filed against Allfasteners USA LLC For the purposes




10.

11.

12,

of the certification, delinquent taxes are taxes that remain unpaid on the latest
day prescribed for payment without penalty under the chapter of the Revised Code

governing payment of those taxes.

Non-Discrimination Hiring. Medina has developed a policy to ensure recipients of Job
Creation Grants practice non-discriminatory hiring in its operations. By executing this
Agreement, Allfasteners USA LLC is committing to following non-discriminatory
hiring practices acknowledging that no individual may be denied employment solely
on the basis of race, religion, sex, disability, color, national origin, or ancestry.

Transfer and Assignment. This Agreement is not transferable or assignable without
the express, written approval of City of Medina. The City of Medina acknowledges
that it would be unreasonable to withhold such consent in the event of a proposed
transfer or assignment to any parent, subsidiary or affiliate of Allfasteners USA LLC or
to any third party so long as with respect to all or any of such proposed transfers or
assignments, the proposed transferee or assignee adequately and sufficiently
demonstrates to the City of Medina, to the City of Medina’s reasonable satisfaction,
its financial ability, business experience and intentions to continue its operations of
the Facility and Project in a manner similar to that of Allfasteners USA LLC in alt

pertinent respects.

Termination or Modification of Incentives.

A. If Allfasteners USA LLC fails to meet 75% of new payroll or new employment
projections in any given year, the grant shall not be awarded for that year.

B. If Allfasteners USA LLC fails to meet 75% of new payroll or new employment
projections for three consecutive years, this Agreement shall be terminated

by the City of Medina.

C. If the project does not proceed as specified in Section 5{(A}1) of the
Agreement or within the approved one-year extension period, the City of
Medina may terminate the Agreement upon recommendation of the Business

Development Committee.

D. If Alifasteners USA LLC fails to submit required information and/or reports as
set forth in Section 7 above, the City of Medina may terminate or modify this
Agreement and deny or modify future grants heretofore granted from the
date of Alifasteners USA LLC’s breach or default.

In the case as provided in this Subsection D, the City of Medina’s termination
or modification of this Agreement may be instituted only if Allfasteners USA
LLC fails to cure any breach of any term of this Agreement as determined by
the City of Medina within ten {10) days of receiving written notice of such
failure from the City of Medina or, if cure of the breach cannot be completed




within ten (10} days, if Allfasteners USA LLC has not made a good
faith start of the cure, and/or not diligently pursued same.

Nothing contained in Sections 12(A), 12(B}, 12(C), or 12(D) shall permit the
City of Medina to recapture or otherwise deny Alifasteners USA LLC the
benefit of a grant in respect of any period prior to the date of such
termination or modification by the City of Medina.

The City of Medina may terminate or modify this Agreement and may also
require the repayment of the full amount of grant payments awarded under
this Agreement, upon the occurrence of any of the following:

1) the City of Medina determines that the certification as to delinquent taxes
required by this Agreement is fraudulent, or

2) In the event that Allfasteners USA LLC vacates the Facility and/or moves
the Project out of the City of Medina or terminates its operations at the
Facility altogether during a 10 (numeral) year period beginning on the
effective date of this Agreement.

The City of Medina may, absent any legislative action, resolution or court
ordered mandate to the contrary, collect any and all grant payments awarded
under this Agreement, and Alifasteners USA LLC shall pay directly to the City
of Medina or its authorized agent any and all grant payments awarded under
this Agreement due on the date Allfasteners USA LLC moves the Project out
of the City of Medina or terminates its operations at the Facility altogether
during the __ 10  vyear period beginning on the effective date of this
Agreement; or within ten (10) days from the date Allfasteners USA LLC is
notified by the City of Medina that any tax certification is fraudulent.

Allfasteners USA LLC or successor entity shall promptly notify the City of
Medina if any of the following events occur:

(i) If control of Alifasteners USA LLC or substantially all of its assets
located at the Project site is obtained by another entity or

shareholders or

(i) If Allfasteners USA LLC merges with another entity or

| {iii) If Allfasteners USA LLC substantially restructures itself through an
acquisition or divestiture or otherwise

and if any of these events affects the ability of Allfasteners USA LLC or its
successor entity to perform substantially the obligations of Allfasteners USA
LLC under this Agreement and to meet the employment and payroll
projections anticipated herein. “Control of Alfasteners USA LLC" for the
purposes of this subsection means that persons and/or entities owning the
majority of Company’s outstanding voting stock at the date of this Agreement




13.

14.

cease to own such or cease to have the unconditional right to elect a
majority of Allfasteners USA LLC’s board of directors.

H. Each provision for mo‘dification or termination hereunder shall not affect
Allfasteners USA LLC’s obligations or the City of Medina’s rights under any
other provision of this Agreement. -

Fees. Allfasteners USA LLC shall pay an annual fee of $ 500 (five hundred dollars) in
each year that Alifasteners USA LLC has a grant agreement in effect upon notification
that such payment is due. The proceeds will be used to defray costs of program

administration and to help fund the program.

Any notices, statements, acknowledgements, consent approvals, certificates, or
requests required to be given on behalf of either party shall be made in writing

addressed as follows:

If to the City to: Dennis Hanwell, Mayor
Medina City Hall
132 N. Elmwood Avenue
Medina, Ohio 44256

With a copy to: Director of Law— City of Medina
Gregory Huber
Medina City Hall
132 N. Elmwood Avenue
Medina, Ohio 44256

ito to:

Allfasteners USA LLC

Mick Strange, CEO
959 lLake Rd
Medina, OH 44256

or such other address as may be noticed.




15. Condition Precedent.  Allfasteners USA LLL’s and Medina acknowledge that this
Agreement must be approved by formal action of the legislative authority of the City
of Medina as a condition for the Agreement to take effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Medina, Ohio, by Dennis Hanwell, its Mayor, and
pursuant to Ordinance No. 154-07 and Allfasteners USA LLC's, by Mick Strange, CEO,
have caused this instrument to be executed on the day of

, 2023,
WITNESSED BY: CiTY OF MEDINA
By:
Title: Mayor
WITNESSED BY:
By:
Title:

The legal form and correctness of the
within instrument is hereby approved.

DIRECTOR OF LAW-~ CITY OF MEDINA

By:

Date:




T Kty 13 *ﬁ
Medina CITY OF MEDINA
L ki ) JOB GREATION GRANT APPLIGATION

Pgrewentatad FpgadatEes

The following Is an application to the City of Medina located in the County of Medina by
, hereinafter referred to as the company, for Job Creation Grant Incentives.

{company name} |1

l. General Information

Applicant Company Name %\\QQ&*R‘\'\‘QTS \U\&Q‘ o

Home or Main Offics Strest Aderess 55 Loe, Road

city (Nehied. state (O Zip code DAY\
Local Project Site Street Address oy Loke, QQQ‘Q\

city ORI state O\ Zip code 2O\
Contact Person Name g&\f\\ﬁ,\,}) Mﬁkp

Telephone [f\%\j\/ 222 AU Fax (\A:Ai{\B 222 A0\ 2.
“Email 0&\(\\%\{\5 : Y\S‘i\ﬁ&”@ Alfotiene e

Nature of business (manufacturing, distribution, wholesale, retail, residential or
other) . ' . .
Croriepe. e ) Soiednr 2 08ioner Qs

Standard Industrial Codes that apply to the products produced by the enterprise.

SIC Code # NAICS Code # AAA\%D

SIC Code # NAICS Code #

Form of business {corporation, partnership, proprietorship, or other).

R‘(\“(\t\’%\\\\) - Ll

City of Medina fob Creation Grant Application
Modified November 2014
Page |




it Gy 0 TR
4]

M@d [né{ CITY OF MEDINA

JORB CREATION GRANT APPLICATION

Fosudy e ban Fjupmm e 7

Name of principal owner{s) or officers of the company (attach list if
necessary).

MW Stramnon - CED

Does the company owe:

A.'

Any delinquent taxes to the State of Ohio or any County, City or
Township within the State of Ohio?

Yes No \/ (please check)

. Any moneys to the State or a state agency for the administration or

enforcement of any environmental laws of the State?

Yes No \/ {(please check)

. Any other moneys to the State, a state agency ora politié:al subdivision

of the State that are past due, whether the amounts owed are being
contested in a court of law or not?

Yes No \/ (please check)

. If yes to any of the above, please provide details of each instance

including buf not limited to the location, amounts and/or case
identification numbers (attach additional sheets if needed).

City of Medina Job Creation Grant Application
Modified Navember 2014
Page 2




Frw By 800 ,"
Med { na . CITY OF MEDINA
JOB GREATION GRANT APFLICATION

B I H.z
[PIRT PPEE PR

[l.  Financial Information & Project Information

Estimate the amount fo be invested by the company to establish, expand,
renovate ot occupy a facility:

Total Amount

A | Land $§ RS 250,
B | Acquisition of Buildings ' $ 200 =D,
C | AdditionsiNew Construction ' ' $§ ’
B T improvements to Existing Buildings § OIS,
E | Machinery & Equipment 5 '
E | Furpiture & Equipment § 20,000,
@ | Inventory § ASG,000 .

Total New Project Investment $

Project will begin A i;gé§ \ , 2023 and be completed NM\ , 20240 .

Project Description; m\f r\a&d@,{‘{“ﬁ (\(b\UC‘F

oo Nen oF A NS Q\@\Q}r\ﬂ e, e

DLOMNYG, O, m\&:\m ok OB Lode, Peod 4

’w\\\ﬁ&‘x\m RS S 1ncreodes NN Res

Cofnerur 108 wild ol Sy Qo) tskioR 4
00 e rest Ay

.k\f 2 \DQ}(';S {see bottom of page for more detaif)
Business’s reasons fof reqitestiig fax Incentives {be quantitatively specific as possible

Broy QFesapt AD O fenennies YA

Qe \’\QED\‘{\Q Ry Q(M\Jf QQM\‘(\O, 0 ‘(\ﬁb
uin e Copdal e oF O DELRR
ESUITTITRN G e\ Aol ARy RN
ey By Bh N \N‘(’&\M T

City of Medina Job chahon Grant Appllcation
Modified November 2014
Page 3

Allfasteners is expanding into the stealth/concealment industry and have developed a patent pending radome shielding
canister door design that is unique in the cell phone industry for concealment. This new product/technology requires a
large amount of exira warehouse and sub-assembly space to take it from the trial/concept phase it is currently in, to full

turn key production and delivery.




Medlina
et 3R |

Yok BL2E g P Fan

. Empioyment & Payroll iInformation

CITY OF MEDINA
JOB CREATION GRANT APPLICATION

A. State the company’s current employment level in the City of Medina {for all
locations) and the total of any other Ohio locations as well as annual payroll for

those jobs:

Current E/T Permanent
Employees in Medina

0l

Current Annual Payroll for
FI/T Permanent o
Empiloyees in Medina

BN 220

Current F/T Employees In

Ohio at locations
City of Medina

outside of

O

Current Annual Payroll for
F/T Employees in Chio at
locations outside City of

Medina

O

B. List proposed schedule for new hiring as a result of this project:

Year1 Year 2 Year 3 Tofal
New F/T or F/T
equivalent
Permanent /“\ 5 b \6
employees

C. Estimate the amount of Payroll such NEW employees will add as a result of

this project:

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total
New F/TorF/T [ $ $ $ $ '
equivalent .
Permanent \ZOW- Q0. OO LT
employees

City of Medina Job Creation Grant Application
Modified November 2014

Page d




E@dih a\ GITY OF MEDINA
1 JOB CREATION GRANT APPLICATION

mmi‘ﬁ}m

Ao 6o g Sty T e ¥

IV. Certifications

Submission of the application expressly authorizes _The City of Medina
(Mame of Local Jurisdiction) .

to contact the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency to confirm statements contained within
this application including item #5 and to review applicable confidential records. As part of this
application, the property owner may also be required to directly tequest from the Ohic
Department of Taxation, or complete a waiver form allowing the Department of Taxation to
release specific tax records to the local jurisdiction considering the request. The applicant agrees
to supply additional information upon request.

The applicant affirmatively covenants that the information contained in and submitted with this
application is complete and correct and is aware of the ORC Sections 9.66(C)(1) and
2021.13(D)(1) penalties for falsification which could result in the forfeiture of all current and
future economic development assistance benefits as well as a fine of not more than 31,000 and/or

a term of imprisonment of not more than six months.

PhGsnes W 1L Alop ooz

Name of Pépperty/Business Owner Date
f ey S‘m&\o;u - CED
Signatifre Typed Name and Title

Application Fee:

e A non-refundable fee of $500.00 is to be submitted with this application. A
copy of the application will ke attached to the final Job / Payroll Creation
Grant Program Agreement, which must be submitted to City Council for

approval.

City of Medina Job Creation Grant Application
Modified November 2014
Page §




RCA 23-104-5/8

ORDINANCE NO., 95-23

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER
INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH IamGIS FOR GEOGRAPHIC
INFORMATION SYSTEMS (GIS) SERVICES FOR THE CITY

OF MEDINA.
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to enter into an agreement with

SEC. 1:

TIam@GIS for GIS Services for the City of Medina,

SEC. 2: That a copy of the agreement is marked Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated
herein. :

' SEC. 3; That the funds to cover this expenditure in the estimated amount of $42,000.00 are
available in Account No. 108-0610-53321.

SEC. 4: That in accordance with Ohio Revised Code §5705.41(D), at the time that the
contract or order was made and at the time of execution of the Finance Director’s
certificate, sufficient funds were available or in the process of collection, to the credit
of a proper fund, properly appropriated and free from any previous encumbrance.

SEC. 5: That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its commitiees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law.

SEC. 6: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed by
law.

PASSED: SIGNED:

‘ President of Council

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Clerk of Council
SIGNED:

Mayor

Ord. 95-23




FOWER THRLU SIPLICITY™

CUSTOMER AGREEMENT
Customer: City of Medina (OH})
Initial Term: Service to begin on: 5/1/2023 (the “Effective Date™), and shall end on: 4/30/2024,
unless extended or terminated as provided in this Agreement.
Total Software Fee: $ 42,000 (Three Years)
Total Software Fee: $ 14,000
Payment Schedule: By signing this Agreement; Customer agrees to the following terms/conditions:

Failure to pay Net 30 invoice(s) by due date shall result in a 10% late fee and the
halting of services.

- Year 1: $14,000 (invoiced upon Signature)

- Year 2: $14,000 (invoiced 5/1/2024)

- Year 3: $14,000 (invoiced 5/1/2025)




1

THIS CUSTOMER AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into as of the Effective Date, by and between
Customer and iamGIS Group, LLC (“Provider). In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth

herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. Service. Provider is a geographic information system (GIS) service provider that provides digital inventories of assets
and infrastructure, and majntenance and support thereof (the “Service”). The Service also includes: (a) importing and review
of existing Custorner shape files; (b) training and off-site support; (c) unlimited access to all tutorial and training videos; (d)
creation of custom attributable fields and layer templates; and (e) initial setup of display seitings, advance settings, and
Authorized User credentials. Provider shall have sole discretion as to the form, content, design, presentation, and user

interaction with regard to the Service.

2. Term and Termination. The Initial Term is for one (1) year and shall be automatically renewed for additional yearly
intervals (each, a “Renewal Term™) on the anniversary of the Effective Date, unless Customer provides thirty (30) days’
prior written notice to Provider. After the Initial Term, either party may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause,
upon thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the other party. If this Agreement is terminated at any time, no refund shall be
provided. The Annual Software Fee for any renewal term beyond the Initial Term (the “Renewal Term Fee”) shall be due
within thirty (30) days after the start of each Renewal Term. The Initial Term and Renewal Term may collectively be referred

to herein as the “Term.”

3. Software Support. During the Term, Customer may contact Provider via (a) web chat accessed on the Website; or
(b) email at support@iamgis.net for any support questions related to the Software, Website, or Service. Customer accepts
Provider’s hours of operation are Monday through Friday from 8:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M. Eastern Standard Time and, therefore,
is not guaranteed to receive suppott or communication outside those bours of operation.

4. Website and Intellectual Property. Provider shall retain all right, title, and interest in and to: (a) that certain
collection of computer coding, as modified, updated, and jimproved from time to time, which comprises and facilitates the
Service (the “Software”); (b) Provider’s website located at iamGIS.net which hosts the Software and provides a platform
for Customer to receive, access, and view the Service (the “Website™); and (c) Provider’s trade secrets, trademarks, service
marks, trade names, and other intellectual property (collectively, the “Intellectual Property”) worldwide, subject to the
Limited License, as defined herein and granted hereunder. Provider hereby grants to Customer a non- exclusive, limited
Jicense for the use of its Intellectual Property only as expressly provided in this Agreement (the “Limited License”). All such
use under the Limited License shall be subject to and in accordance with Provider’s reasonable policies regarding the Service
and Intellectual Property usage as established from time to time. Upon the termination of this Agreement, Customer shall
immediately cease using the Intellectual Property, and Provider shall cease the display of Customer Data on the Website,

unless otherwise agreed by the parties in writing,

5. Customer Data. Customer shall provide to Provider all necessary data for input or transfer onto the Website via the
Software, which shall detail Customer’s assets and infrastructure to be displayed in connection with the Service (collectively,
the “Customer Data™). Customer represents and warrants to Provider that: (a) Customer has all right, title, and interest in
and to any Customer Data provided to Provider; (b) the Customer Data is accurate; and (c) Customer is not violating the
intellectual property rights, title, and/or interests of any third parties by providing the Customer Data to Provider. Customer
agrees that Provider shall not be liable, and Customer shall hold Provider harmless for, any errors or inaccuracies in the

Customer Data in connection with the Service.

6. Customer Aceount. Customer shall have its own, private account on the Website (the “Customer Account”), which
will display the Customer Data as pait of the Service. The Customer Account may be accessed pursuant to the Limited
License, and only by the individual(s) designated by Customer as an “Authorized User.” Customer shall not permit any
other person or entity to access the Customer Aecount, other than an Authorized User. Each Authorized User shall have

hig/her own, unique login credentials for the Customer Account.

7. Tees. In consideration of the Service, Customer agrees to pay the Up-front Fees (collectively, the “Total Account

Fee”) pursuant to Payment Schedule as detailed on page one (1) of this Agreement. Fach Renewal Term Fee shall increase

by a rate of five percent (5%) annually, and each Renewal Term Fee payment shall be made within thirty (30) days after the
2




start of each renewal term. Failure to make any payment on time shall result in a ten percent (10%) late payment fee and
the halting of services until required payment is made.

8. Website Terms of Service. In addition to the rights and obligations provided to Customer under this Agreement,
Customer agrees to be bound by the Terms of Service, Community Guidelines, and Privacy Policy, if any, as amended from
time to time (collectively, the “Terms of Service™), listed on the Provider Website.

9. Confidentiality. For the purposes of this Agreement, the term “Confidential Information” shall mean information
received from the disclosing party or any of its affiliates or representatives about the disclosing party’s (or its suppliers’)
business or activity, which shall include all information, whether written or oral, tangible or mtangible, of a confidential or
proprietary nature, of or concerning the other party and its business and operations, including, without limitation, all pricing
and other financial data and projections, business plans, and strategies, Intellectual Property, patent and trademark
technology and applications, computer software and marketing, and sales information, but shall not include any information
which (i) was known by the receiving party prior to disclosure by or on behalf of the other party, (ii) becomes available to
the receiving party from a source other than the other party, which source is not bound by duty of confidentiality, (iii)
becomes generally available or known in the industry; or (iv) the Customer is required to disclose pursuant o law. Each
party agrees (a) that it will not disclose to any third party or use any Confidential Information disclosed to it by the other
except as expressly permitted in this Agreement, and (b) that it will take all reasonable measures to maintain the
confidentiality of the Confidential Information of the other party in its possession or control, which will in no event be less
than the measures it uses to maintain the confidentiality of its own information of similar importance. The terms and
conditions of this A greement shall be deemed to be Confidential Information of each party and shall not be disclosed without

the written consent of the other party.

10. Events of Default. Each of the following shall be considered an “Event of Default” under this Agreement:
(a) failure or refusal of Customer to pay any portion of the Total Account Fee (or atty successive Renewal Term Fee) when
due; (b) failure or refusal of Customer to pay the Asset Digitization Fee (if applicable) when due; (c) failure of Customer to
abide by the Terms of Service; and (d) a material breach of Customer’s representations, watranties, and/or obligations under
this Agreement. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, Provider may, without notice: (i) immediately cease providing
the Service, (if) shut off Customer’s and all Authorized Users® access to the Customer Account and the Website; and/or (iii)

immediately terminate this Agreement.

.
[y,

11. Indemmnification-of Previder




12. Indemnification of Customer, Provider hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Customer,
its affiliaics, members, officers, directors, employees, consultants, successors, and agents (collectively, the “Customer
Released Parties™) from any and afl claims, cross-actions, third-party actions, and causes of action of every kind that have
been or may be asserted in the future against the Customer Released Parties arising from or refated to: (a) Provider’s material
breach of this Agreement; (b) any claim that the Provider’s software infringes or violates the intellectual property rights,
title, and/or interests of any third parties; or (c) any claim for personal injury, property damage, negligence, product liability,
breach of warranty, breach of duty, statutory violation, or other claim made with respect to Provider’s performance of its
duties hereunder. Without limiting the foregoing, this indemnity and hold harmless provision is specifically intended to
inchude all forms and types of damages, losses, costs, liabilitics, taxes, and expenses that may be sought against the Customer
Released Parties and the costs of litigation, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees. Customer shall
promptly notify Provider of any claim or demand, specifying the nature of such claim or demand and the amount demanded.
Provider shall not setfle any claim or demand without the prior written consent of Customer. If it so chooses, Customer
shall have the right to control the handling and resolution of any claim or demand which is subject to this indemnity and
hold harmless provision, including the right to engage counsel of its choice to handle any negotiations or litigation. Provider
agrees to cooperate and participate in the resolution of any claim or demand. The failure of the Customer to give reasonably
prompt notice of any claim shall not release, waive, or otherwise affect Provider’s obligations with respect thereto. Provider
hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Customer Released Parties for any claim arising from action or inaction by a
third party or subcontracted entity related to personal jnjury, property damage, negligence, product liability, breach of
warranty, breach of duty, statutory violation, or other claim that is not directly and specifically related to Customer’s services

or obligations under this Agreement.

13. Authority. Customer represents and warrants that Customer has full approval and authority to enter into this
Agreement, and the individuals executing this Agreement on behalf of Customer have been duly authorized.

4. Amendment and Waiver. No modification, variation, or amendment of this Agreement shall be effective
unless agreed to in writing by both parties. A failure of either party to enforce at any time any of the provisions of this
Agreement, or to require at any time performance of any of the provisions hereof, shall in no way affect the full right to
require such performance at any time thereafter. No waiver shall be deemed a waiver of any other breach of the same or any

other terms or conditions hereof,

15. Assignment. Customer may not assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of Provider.

17. Notice. All notices required to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed delivered: (a) immediately
upon hand-delivery; or (b) three (3) business days after sending the notice via U.S. Certified Mail, return receipt requested,
addressed to the receiving party at the address provided by the receiving party from time to time; or (c) via email.

18. Miscellaneous. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed by the parties or any other entity to
create an employer-employee rclationship, agency, partnership, or joint venture between the parties. This Agreement shall
be subject to and governed by the laws of the State of adianaOhio, without consideration of any conflicts of laws principles.
The parties agree that the proper venue and jurisdiction for any dispute under this Agreement shall be the state and/or federal
courts located in Marien-Medina County, IndiasaOhio. If any of the provisions of this Agreement are for any reason held
by any court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions herein
shall remain in full force and effect. This Agreement may be executed in one or more countetparts, each of which shall be
deemed to be an original and all of which together shall constitute a single Agreement.

4




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agrecment contains the entire agreement of the parties. Customer agrees that this
Agreement includes all terms on all pages/sides hereto. Customer has read, understands, and voluntarily agrees to all terms
stated herein. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements or understandings between Customer and Provider. By
executing below, Customer agrees to be bound by all the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and any addendums hereto,
as of the Effective Date noted above. This Agreement is not valid unless signed and accepted by Provider below.

“Customer” “Provider”
City of Medina (OH) iamGIS Group, LLC
By: By:

Printed:  DENALS H’ an Nﬂ“ Printed:

Title: M a»{a ' Title:

Billing Email
(For invoice):




SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

SEC, 4:

PASSED:

ATTEST:

RCA 23-107-5/8

ORDINANCE NO. 96-23

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER
INTO AN AMENDED AGREEMENT TO ESTABLISH THE
MEDINA COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

AGENCY.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to enter into an Amended
Agreement to Establish the Medina County Emergency Management Agency.

That a copy of the Agreement is marked Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated
Herein.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance

with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed by
law.

SIGNED:

President of Council

APPROVED:

Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Mayor

Ord. 96-23




v.11 FINAL 4-28-2023

oRD. 4623

AMENDED AGREEMENT TO ESTABLISH EXh. b

THE MEDINA COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY

WHEREAS, the Medina County Emergency Management Agency was first esiablished
through action taken by the Board of Commissioners of Medina County on January 6, 1990,
through Resolution No. 90-39, and subsequently approved by a majority of the other political
subdivisions in the County by either explicit approval of this Agreement, by resolution or
ordinance, or by implicit approval through participation in the countywide emergency planning
- process and/or by choosing not to establish a separate program for emergency management; and

WHEREAS the Medina County Emergency Management Agency was originally
organized under Ohio Revised Code 5915; and

WHEREAS, effective October 29, 1995, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 5915 was amended
and re-codified by SB162 placing Emergency Management Agencies under Title 55 “Roads,

Highways and Bridges”; and

WHEREAS all political subdivisions in Medina County have participated in the
establishment of a countywide all-hazards emergency operations plan, cooperated in the
preparation, and conduct of the annual exercise applicable to all political subdivisions in the
County and no individual subdivision has submitted an independent all-hazards emergency

management plan; and

WHEREAS the coordination of emergency management services for the benefit of
Medina County and its residents continues to be of paramount importance to all of the local

political subdivisions in the County; and

WHEREAS the undersigned polifical subdivisions desire to continue the coordination of
emergency services through a countywide emergency management agency, in the manner
provided by law, and particularly as provided in Ohio Revised Code Chapter 5502, and to
exercise any and all powers set forth therein to coordinate and unify the emergency management
activities of the participating subdivisions that do not opt to develop a separate and independent

emergency operations plan; and

WHEREAS, it is further declared to be the purpose of this agreement and the policy of
the participants hereto, that all emergency management functions of the participants be
coordinated to the maximum extent with comparable functions of the State of Ohio and of the
Federal government, including their various departments and agencies, and other states and
localities, and of private agencies of every type, to the end that the most effective preparation and
use can be made of the participants’ manpower, resources and facilities for dealing with any
disaster or emergency situation that may occur; and

WHEREAS it is hereby found and declared to be necessary to create a countywide
emergency management agency to be known as the "Medina County Office of Emergency
Management and Homeland Security" hereinafier referred to as MCEMA; to confer upon the
executive committee and the director of emergency management, certain emergency powers
provided herein; and to provide for the rendering of cooperation and mutual aid, if necessary,

1




v.11 FINAL 4-28-2023

to surrounding and contiguous political subdivisions of the State and adjoining states.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT AGREED:

1. That an organization to be known as the MCEMA be formed to perform the services of
coordinating the emergency management activities within the County of Medina, by and
between the political subdivisions herein, in accordance with the provisions hereinafter

set forth.

2. That the MCEMA, hercby authorized, is to render the service of coordinating the
cmergency management activities of the parties hereto and to exercise for and on behalf
of each party hereto such power and authority incident thereto as it may lawfully do,
consistent with State statuies and such regulations as have been or shall be promulgated
by the Governor of the State, the provisions of this resolution/ordinance/agreement as
hereinafter set forth, and the power of the parties hereto authorized, in coordinating such
emergency management activities with and within Medina County. '

3. That a representative from each political subdivision entering into the agreement, selected
by the political subdivision’s chief executive, shall constitute a countywide advisory
group for the purpose of appointing an executive committee under ORC Section 5502.26
through which the countywide agency shall implement emergency management in the
county. The group shall meet at a time and place determined by the Board of County
Commissioners in January of each year or at the call of the executive committee when a
majority of the executive committee members deems it necessary.

4. That the executive commiitee shall consist of at least the following seven members: one
Medina County Commissioner representing the board of county commissioners entering
into the agreement; five chief executives representing the municipal corporations and
townships entering into the agreement (which shall consist of one chief executive from
cach of the three largest cities in Medina County representing each of those cities and
two township trustees representing the townships in Medina County); and one nonelected
representative selected by the countywide advisory group at the annual meeting. Up to
six additional members may be appointed to the executive committee, chosen as follows:
1) the Board of Commissioners of Medina County may at its own option appoint an
additional person to the executive committee, who may be either a second Medina
County Commissioner or a nonelected representative, 2) the chief executives of the
villages in Medina County may at their own option, by majority vote, appoint an
individual to the executive committee, who may be either an elected or unelected person,
to represent the villages in Medina County, 3) the Medina County Sheriff may at the
Sheriff’s option appoint a law enforcement officer (who may be the Sheriff himv/herself
or another officer from a law enforcement agericy in Medina County) to the executive
committee; and 4) the executive committee may at its option appoint up to three
additional individuals to the executive committee, who may be either elected or non-
elected individuals. The terms of office of all members appointed to the executive
committee, whether the statutory appointees or the additional members, shall be one year,
unless otherwise stipulated at the time of the appointment. Members shall continue to

2




v.11 FINAL 4-28-2023

serve until a successor is appointed and takes office. The executive committee shall at
leastannually, and upon any change in the membership of the executive committee,
prepare an official roster of all then current members of the executive committee with
their terms listed, and communicate a copy of said roster to each political subdivision

entering into the agreement.

That the executive committee shall appoint a director/coordinator of emergency
management whose duties are prescribed herein by Chapter 5502 of the Ohio Revised

Code.
That the director will have all such powers as is granted under this agreement and under
statute,

That the director of emergency management shall be responsible for coordinating,
organizing, administering, and operating emergency management in accordance with the
agency's program established under this Chapter 5502 of the Revised Code, subject to the
direction and control of the executive committee. All agencies, boards, and divisions
having emergency management functions within each political subdivision within the
county shall cooperate in the development of the all-hazards emergency operations plan,
shall cooperate in the preparation and conduct of the annual exercise. The director may
appoint, from time to time, a deputy director and/or such other assistants as the director
deems advisable, who shall hold office during their pleasure. The director and the .
assistants to the director shall not be compensated for services rendered unless approved
by action of the executive committee. The director may, with the prior consent of the
executive commiitee, employ such technical, clerical, stenographic and other personnel
as deemed necessary and fix their compensation when they are to be compensated. The
salary of the director and the salaries of other paid personnel shall be paid from the

MCEMA fund.

That the executive committee shall have general direction of the MCEMA, shall be
responsible for the carrying out of the provisions of this agreement through the director of
emergency management, may adopt such rules and regulations as it deems necessary for
its operations, and may delegate authority to the director for expenditures within the
budget and monetary limits as the executive committee sees fit. In performing duties
pursuant to this agreement, the executive committee is authorized to cooperate with'
participating subdivisions, non-participating political subdivisions, the State of Ohio,
other states, the Federal government through appropriate channels, and with private
agencies in all matters pertaining to emergency management activities of Medina County,
the State of Ohio and the United States as provided and encouraged under Revised Code

Seciion 5502.35.

That the MCEMA, under Revised Code Section 5502.30, while performing emergency
management services in this state pursuant to an arrangement, agreement, or compact for
muiual aid and assistance, or any agency, member, agent, or representative of any of
them, or any individual, partnership, corporation, association, trustee, or receiver, or any
of the agents thereof, in good faith carrying out, complying with, or attempting to comply

3




10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

v.11 FINAL 4-28-2023

with any state or federal law or any arrangement, agreement, or compact for mutual aid
and assistance, or any order issued by federal or state military authorities relating to
emergency management, is not liable for any injury to or death of persons or damage to .
property as the result thereof during training periods, test periods, practice periods, or
other emergency management operations, or false alerts, as well as during any hazard,
actual or imminent, and subsequent to the same except in cases of willful misconduct.

That the executive committee shall prepare a budget and annual report of activities for
each year, under such rules and regulations as it may prescribe. Said budget and report of
activities of the agency shall be presented to the participating political subdivisions at the
required annual meeting of the countywide advisory group, as well as made available-
through electronic media. The funds provided for in said budget and all other funds
received from whatever source, or by whatever means, for emergency management by
the MCEMA shall be paid to the treasurer of Medina County into a special fund known

as the MCEMA Fund.

That each participating political subdivision hereto agrecs to pay into the MCEMA fund,
promptly upon demand and invoice therefore, the amount assessed against it, based upon
the annual itemized report on distribution of estimated undivided local government funds
required by O.R.C. §5747.51(J) for the undivided local government fund, the County’s
proportionate share being increased to include the percentage established for the park
districts, and to do and perform all and singular, the obligations herein assumed. The
participating subdivisions also acknowledge that Medina County bears additional
administrative costs that are not reimbursed because Section 5502.26(C) designates a
countywide emergency management agency to be considered a county board, statutorily
entitled to receive the services of the county auditor, treasurer, and prosecuting attorney
in the same manner as other county agencies, boards, or divisions. Medina County also
bears additional unreimbursed costs for property insurance, building maintenance, and
administrative functions as shown in the regularly adopted Central Services Cost
Allocation Plan prepared for Medina County, Ohio.

That this agreement may be amended or altered at any time by a majority of the parties
hereto.

That this agreement shall be in full force and effect when no less than a majority of the
political subdivisions within Medina County, including the Board of County
Commissioners of Medina County, have subscribed to this agreement and/or submitted

their annual cost allocation.

That this agreement may be terminated as to the Board of County Commissioners by a
majority of its members, as to any township by a majority of the board of trustees, and as
to any municipal corporation by a majority of its council, and service of written notice
thereof on the director of emergency management within thirty (30) days after the
adoption of the budget for the ensuing fiscal year by the agency.

of a statute herein applies to all reenactments or amendments

A reference to any portion
n date of

thereof, If statutes are enacted fo replace current statutes, the statute latest i

4




v.11 FINAL 4-28-2023

enactment prevails.

16, This Amended Agreement shall take effect and be in force from and after the date
approved by the Board of Commissioners of Medina County by resolution, when
approved by a majority of the subdivisions in Medina County that currently participate
in Medina County’s Countywide Emergency Management Agency, which includes all
municipalities and townships within Medina County.

~

Board of Commissioners of Medina Clounty

Approved by Resolution No. 23-0354,
on May 2, 2023

’,/L" U"' _ﬁ,;/ .

“Stephen D. Hambley

-

7 @arr/%
5/3/2023 / /4
Date ©blleen M. Swe
Other ‘Subdivision Approvals:
Political Subdivision Name Resolution/Ordinance # Date of approval

Chief Fxecutive Officer Printed Name Signature
Chief Executive Officer Printed Name Signature
Chief Executive Officer Printed Name Signature

Approved as to Form:

Entity Legal Counsel Date

Please attach a certified copy of the adopted legtslatlon to this signed agreement and
return both documents to:

Medina County Board of Commissioners
144 N. Broadway Sitreet, Room 201
Medina, OH 44256

5




WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

RCA 22-276-12/12

ORDINANCE NO. 97-23

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS V, VI, VII AND
VIH OF THE CIVIL SERVICE RULES AND REGULATIONS
OF THE CITY OF MEDINA RELATIVE TO LATERAIL
TRANSFER APPLICANTS FOR COMMUNICATION

OPERATORS.

Ordinance No. 99-08, passed May 27, 2008, adopted revised Civil Service Rules and
Regulations; and

The Civil Service Commission respectfully requests City Council to consider and
accept several revisions to the Medina Civil Service Rules Sections V, VI, VIl and

VIII pertaining to Lateral Entry of Communication Operators; and

The Civil Service Commission reviewed these changes and voted to approve at their
regular meeting on May 3, 2023.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY

- OF MEDINA, OHIO:

SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

PASSED:

That Sections V, VI, VII and VII of the Civil Service Rules and Regulations are
hereby amended as set forth in the attachment marked Exhibit A, attached hereto, and

incorporated herein. (Proposed new rules are in boldface and #alics)

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open fo the public, in compliance
with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed by
law.

SIGNED:

ATTEST:

President of Council

APPROVED:

Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Mayor

Ord. 97-23




Ord, 97-23
FExhibit A

RULEV
APPLICATION FOR EXAMINATION

(A) Notice of Examinafion

1. Entrance Examination

The Commission shall give reasonable notice of time, place, and general scope
of every competitive examination to a position in the civil service. Notice may
be given through the local newspapers, bulletin boards, local cable, the City’s
Tnternet website, and/or any other means necessary to obtain qualified applicants

in a timely manner.

2. Promotional Examination

Notice of competitive promotional examinations to be held shall be given by
posting of the announcement of examination in conspicuous places in the
departments whose employees may be interested, and may be by individual
communications to the employees eligible for such promotion.

3. Lateral Transfer Patrol Officer Examination

Notice of competitive Patrol Officer lateral transfer appoiniment examinations to
be held shall be given by posting of the announcement of examination in
conspicuous places in the City Police Department and shall be given through the
local newspapers, bulletin boards, local cable television channel, the City’s
Internet website, and/or any other means necessary to obtain qualified applicants

in a timely manner.

4. Lateral Transfer Communication Operators Examination

{04254658 -3}

Notice of competitive Communication Operator lateral transfer appointment
examinations to be held shall be given by posting of the announcement of the
examination in conspicuous places in the City Police Department and shall be
given through the local newspapers, bulletin boards, local cable felevision
channel, the City’s internet website, and/or any other means necessary to

obtain applicants in a timely manner,




Ord. 97-23
Exhibit A

(B) Minimum Qualiﬁcatioﬂs

The Commission shall establish and publish minimum entrance qualifications for each
examination, which shall be included in the official announcement of each examination.
Minimum entrance qualifications may include, among other things, the following:

1._Applicant’s Age

Before publication of announcements of each examination, the Commission shall
determine age requirements for entrance to such examination. After the
publication of the examination announcement, no change in age requirements
shall be made except by the Commission, which shall then publish a new
announcement of examination. No modification of the age requirements as set
forth in the published notice shall be made in the cases of individual applicants.
Age restrictions for appointment shall also be stated in the announcement of
examination. T'wo such restrictions are listed below:

a. Only persons who have reached the age of twenty-one (21) years shall
be eligible to receive an original appointment as Police Patrol Officer.

b. Only persons who have reached the age of eighteen (18) years shall
be eligible to receive an original appointment as a Firefighter in the

Fire Department.

c. Only persons who have reached the age of twenty-one (21) years and
less than forty-one (41) years of age shall be eligible to reccive an
appointment as a lateral transfer Police Patrol Officer.

2. Exverience and Education

{04254658 -3}

The Commission may establish experience and educational requirements where
they are necessary to performance of a specific job or professional position.

Lateral transfer Patrol Officers must be currently employed with a minimum of
one (1) year of full-time peace officer experience, or previously employed within
the last twelve (12) months as a full-time peace officer, with an Ohio State
Certified Law Enforcement Agency in a jurisdiction in the State of Ohio,
including having completed the probationary period at that employment. For
purposes of this rule, “peace officer” shall be as defined in Ohio Revised Code

109.71 (A).

Lateral transfer Communication Officers must be currently or

- previously employed within the last twelve (12) months as a full-time

Communication Operator with a minimum of one (1) year of full-time
service with an agency that dispatches for Police, Fire or EMS.

2




Ord. 97-23
Exhibit A

3. License or Certification

Wherever a license or certification is required by law to perform the duties of a
classification, the applicant shall present such license or certificate or a certifted
copy at the time of filing application for entrance to an examination for such

classification.

Lateral transfer Patrol Officers must be certified by the Ohio Peace Officer
Training Academy (“OPOTA”) or present to the Commission an OPOTA letter

of training equivalency.

Lateral transfer Communication Operators must be able to operate a Law
Enforcement Automated Data System terminal and not be disqualified to be
L.E.A.D.S. certified.

(C) Applications

Applications for admission to any examination shall be made upon application forms
approved by the Commission. All applications shall be legibly printed or written, and
applicants shall state under oath or affirmation all pertinent facts on the following

subjects:
1. Name, address, and, if requested, date of bitth
2. Service in the uniformed services, as defined in Rule VI(IK)
3. Skills
4. Previous employment
5. Education, if requested
0. Other information affecting the qualification of the applicant for

admission to the examination as required by the Commission

(D) Filing of Application

Unless otherwise permitted, all applications must be filled out at the Civil Service office
in Medina, Ohio. Applications will be accepted only if received before the time fixed in
the announcement of examination as the last date and time for filing; however, the time
for filing may be extended if the Commission determines that there is just and sufficient

cause.

(E) Rejection of Applicants

All applications shall be reviewed by an authorized representative of the Commission.
Applications may be rejected for any of the following reasons:

{04254658 -3} 3




Ord. 97-23

Exhibit A

1. That the applicant has not met the qualifications specified on the
announcement by the date of the examination.

2. That the applicant has intentionally made any false statement on the application.

3. That the applicant is not within the prescribed age limits.

4, That the applicant does not meet the physical requirements of the position.

s. That the applicant has been convicted of a crime or has been guilty of disgraceful
conduct or has been dismissed from employment for flagrant delinquency or
misconduct.

6. That the applicant was previously in the classified service or the unclassified
service and was removed for cause or did not resign in good standing.

7. That the applicant is applying for a classified position in the Division of Police

and is not a United States citizen or has not legally declared the intention of
becoming a United States citizen. The applicant must, however, be a United
States citizen in the event the applicant is appointed to a classified position in the

Division of Police.

In addition, applications may be rejected for any just or reasonable cause that is job-
related, and not discriminatory, as determined by the Commission.

Upon rejecting any application, the Commission shall promptly notify the applicant of
the reason for the rejection by certified mail (return receipt requested) or personal
delivery or Fed-Ex (with signature requested) or substantially, similar, commercial
mailing system. The applicant may, within seven (7) calendar days after issuance of the
notice, file a written complaint against such rejection. The Commission will not hear
complaints that contest the qualifications established by the Commission. If a complaint
from a rejection is pending at the time an examination is scheduled to be held, the
applicant shall be allowed to take the examination pending decision in such inquiry. If
the Commission finds the rejection justified, the examination paper shall not be graded.

(F) Accommodation

The examination announcement will advise potential applicants as to the procedures by
which a potential applicant may request reasonable accommodation in order to
participate in the application process and/or examination process. '

{04254658 -3} 4




Ord. 97-23
Exhibit A

RULE VI
EXAMINATIONS

Examinations may be held where the Commission deems advisable and shall be administered
under the direction of the Commission ot its contracted provider.

(A) Character of Examinations

Examinations shall be practical and impartial and shall relate to those matters that will
fairly test the relative capacity of the persons examined to perform the duties of the

position.

(B) Types and Methods of Examination

The Commission shall determine and state in the announcement of each examination
whether it will be competitive or noncompetitive, entrance or promotional, assembled or

unassembled, or any combination.

(C) Parts of Examination

The Commission shall determine for each examination the parts or subjects into which
it shall be divided and the weight to be assigned to each part. The parts that shall be
recognized may include: written tests, oral tests, performance tests, evaluation of
education and experience, evaluation of attendance, performance and conduct, physical
examinations, medical examinations, and other such tests as the Commission deems

appropriate.

1.

{04254658 -3}

Whitten tests may be cither objective or essay type, as appropriate to demonstrate
the knowledge, skills, or abilities required in the position and to indicate the

applicant’s general qualifications.

Oral tests shall consist of an interview between the applicant and the
designated examiner(s) to measure the applicant’s suitability for the position
as to such job- related factors as may be examined in that manner.

Performance tests and assessment center tests shall include such tests of ability
and skill as will determine the applicant’s competence to perform the duties of

the position.

The Commission shall evaluate the applicant’s education and ekperience from
the statements contained in the application and from such other sources as

may be required.

Physical ability tests, drug tests, medical examinations, and psychological
evaluations, as appropriate, may be given before admission to the examination,
before being placed on the appropriate eligible list, before certification for




Ord. 97-23
Exhibit A

appointment, after certification and interview but before appointment, or after
conditional appointment subject to successful completion of such test(s). Failure to
satisfactorily meet appropriate standards in any such examination shall cause the
rejection of an applicant without regard to the grade(s) attained on other parts of the
examination. Any such test required shall be done at no expense to the applicant.

A person shall be eligible to receive an original appointment as a Police Patrol Officer
or Firefighter or shall be eligible to receive a lateral transfer appointment as a Police
Patrol Officer only if the person has passed a medical examination, given by a
licensed physician not more than one hundred twenty (120) calendar days before the
date of appointment, which shows that the applicant meets the requirements
necessary to perform the duties of the position; however, inquiry regarding the results
of any such examination shall be conducted at the time and manner permitted by law.

Physical examinations may include tests of bodily condition, muscular strength,
ability, and physical fitness to perform the work of the position.

Applicants for lateral transfer appointment will be required to pass the Medina Police
Department physical agility test which will be proctored by a team of Medina Police

Officers,

(D)  Scheduling Examinations

The Commission shall determine the time and place of examinations. The Commission
shall cause an examination to be scheduled before an eligible list has expired or has been
exhausted, or when a new position has been created for which there is no eligible list.

(E) Admitting Applicants to Examination

No applicant shall be admitted to any assembled examination after the advertised time
for beginning such examination, or after any applicant competing in any such
examination has completed the examination and left the examination room, except by
special permission of the person in charge, who shall have discretion to admit the
applicant conditionally, subject to the Commission’s final approval or disapproval of

such admission.

No applicant in any examination shall be given a longer time on any subject than
prescribed by the Commission when examination questions are approved.

(")  Identity of Examinee Concealed

The identity of all persons taking competitive assembled examinations shall be
concealed by the use of an identification number, which shall be used on all examination
papers. This number shall be used from the beginning of the examination until the papers
are rated. Any papers bearing the applicant’s name or any other identification mark may
be rejected and the candidate so notified.

(04254658 -3} 6




Ord. 97-23
Exhibit A

(G) Frauds in Examinations

Frauds in examinations are prohibited and shall result in antomatic

disqualification. No person shall:
1. Willfully or corruptly or in cooperation with one or more persons deceive or

obstruct any person in respect to the exercise of any right or privilege of
examination, appointment, or employment under the civil service law and rules

and regulations;

2. Willfully or corruptly falsely mark, grade, estimate, or report upon the
examination or proper standing of any person examined, registered, or certified
under the provisions of the civil service law, or aid in so doing;

3. Willfully or corruptly furnish to any person any special or secret information to
either improve or injure the prospects or chances of any person so examined,
registered, or certified, or to be appointed, employed, or promoted;

4, Willfully or corruptly make any false representation concerning the results of
such examinations or concerning any person examined;

5. Willfully impersonate any other person, or permit or aid in any manner any other
person to impersonate the applicant in connection with any examination,
registration, appointment, application, or request to be examined, registered,
or appointed;

0. Furnish any false information about the applicant, or any other person in
connection with any examination, registration, appointment, application, or
request to be examined, registered, or appointed;

7. Make known or assist in making known to any applicant for examination
any question to be asked on such examination.

No applicant shall assist any other applicant during the taking of an examination; nor
shall any applicant personally or through another person solicit favor from any member
of the Commission, its staff, or an appointing officer. Any applicant in any examination
found to be using any means of information other than that provided in the examination -
itself, such as memoranda, pamphlets, or books to assist in answering the questions shall
have the examination papers taken up and filed with a zero marking when the

circumstances justify such action.

Protests regarding the conduct of the examiners, the securing of unlawful assistance by
a competitor, or other circumstances in connection with an examination as would call for
an investigation by the Civil Service Commission may be submited to the Commission,
the Commission secretary, or any other person designated by the Commission. All

(04254658 -3} 7




Ord. 97-23
Exhibit A

protests must be submitted in writing unless circumstances require that the information
submitted be given in confidence; however, the confidentiality of such information

cannot be guaranteed.

(H) Visitors at Examination

No visitors shall be admitted to the examination room during any examination except by
special permission of the test administrator.

()  Postponement and Cancellation

The Commission may postpone or cancel any examination because of an inadequate
number of applicants or for any other just and sufficient cause. The Commission may
alter the qualifications for admission to a postponed examination to secure an adequate
number of applicants; however, these alterations shall be adequately publicized. Notice
shall be given to all applicants when an examination is postponed or canceled and such
additional announcements and publications as needed shall be issued to notify the public.

() Method of Grading

The total grade attainable in each examination, except for special credits, shall be one
hundred (100). In examinations composed of more than one part, the method of scoring

shall be:

1.

(04254658 -3}

Each part of the examination shall be separately rated and the proficiency of each
competitor determined on the basis of a scale of one hundred (100) for maximum

possible attainment.

Each part shall be assi gnéd a weight based on the relative value of the part to that
of the entire examination.

The earned grade of each examinee in each part of the examination shall be
multiplied by the weight assigned to the part and the sum of the totals shall be the

earned grade for theparticipant.

In addition to the Military (“Uniformed”) Service credit provided for in these
Rules, the Commission shall have the authority and the discretion with respect to
examinations, other than promotional and noncompetitive examinations, to award
additional credit points to an applicant’s earned passing grade on an examination
(“Additional” credit points). The total credit points to be awarded to one applicant,
including Military (“Uniformed™) Service credit points, shall not exceed ten (10)
credit points. Additional credit points, if provided for by the Commission, shall be
for educational or work-related experience that the Commission in its sole
discretion determines to be related to the position which is the subject of the
examination. The criteria for Additional credit points and the procedure for
applying for these credit points shall be clearly established by motion of the




Ord. 97-23
Exhibit A

Commission and set forth in the publicized examination notice. The required proof
of eligibility to be awarded Additional credit points, in the event the applicant
achieves a passing grade on the examination, shall be established by a date and
time prior to the commencement of the examination.

(K) Credit for Military ("Uniformed") Service

Any person who has completed service in the uniformed services and who has been
honorably discharged from the uniformed services or transferred to the reserve with
evidence of satisfactory service may file with the Comumission a certificate of service or
honorable discharge, and, upon this filing, the person shall receive an additional five (5)
points credit, to be added to the applicant’s carned passing grade resulting from the

examination.

Requests for additional credit for uniformed service shall be filed with the Commission,
along with the application preferably, but in no event later than the day of the
examination. Credit for uniformed service will not be given if the request for such credit
is received by the Commission after an eligible list for any examination has been

established.

This credit shall not apply to any promotional or noncompetitive examination.

When holding a combined open competitive and promotional examination for Chief of
Police, no credit for uniformed service will be given to any applicant, either applicants
currently in the City service or applicants outside the City service.

As used in these Rules, "service in the uniformed services” and "uniformed services"
have the same meaning as the "Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment
Rights Act of 1994,..." 38 U.S.C.A. 4303" which meaning shall be:

The Armed Forces, the Army National Guard and the Air National Guard
when engaged in active duty for training, inactive duty training, or a full-
time National Guard duty, the commissioned corps of the Public Health
Service, and any other category of persons designated by the President in
the time of war or national emergency.

(L) Examination Papers

No grades given in any examination shall be changed after the posting of an eligible list,
cxcept that the Commission may correct clerical errors at any time before the expiration
of such lists. An applicant, upon request to the Commission, may be permitted to inspect
the applicant’s own examination papers and the markings thereof at any time within sixty
(60) calendar days after such eligible list is posted, except examinations wherein the test
developer will not allow the key to be published or retained. No note-taking, video
reproduction, recording, or other form of reproduction will be permitted during such

inspection.

(04254658 -3} 9




Ord. 97-23
Exhibit A

(M) Method of Filling Promotional Vacancies

Vacancies in authorized positions above the lowest classifications in the classified
service shall be filled, as far as practicable, by promotions. (Promotional ranks within
the Police Department shall be filled in compliance with Section P of this Rule). The
Commission shall determine in each case whether or not it is practicable to fill a vacancy
by promotion, and from what classification or classifications such promotion shall be
made and the type of examination to be used for the promotion. The type of examination
may include written, oral, performance, or assessment center tests.

Eligibility for a promotional examination shall be limited to permanent employees who
have satisfactorily completed their probationary period in a lower class.

Whenever there are three or more persons in a proper lower class eligible and willing to
compete for a vacancy in a higher position, the Commission may, if it deems a
satisfactory appointee can be obtained in this manner, hold a promotional examination
open only to persons in that class/classes, in which case the names of the three persons
having the highest passing ratings shall be certified to the appointing authority. If a
promotional examination is not held and/or there are fewer than three persons eligible

and willing to compete, the Commission may:

1. Hold an open competitive examination to fill the vacancy.

2. Hold a combined open competitive and promotional examination to fill the
vacancy.

3. Permit the appointing authority to nominate one of such eligible persons for

promotion without competition as an exceptional appointment, but in all cases of
promotion without competition, the appointing- authority shall submit a written
statement showing that the duties performed by the person nominated are a
natural preparation for the higher position, and that such person is entitled to
promotion by reason of length of experience and effective performance.

4, Permit the appointing authority to underfill by provisionally appointing to
the position an employee who has less than the minimum qualifications for the
position. During the probationary period, which shall be three (3) months, the
appointing authority shall designate training for the position. If the employee
proves unsatisfactory during the probationary period in the sole discretion of
the appointing authority, the employée may be reduced to the former rank.

{04254658 -3} 10




Ord. 97-23
Exhibit A

(N)  Grading of Promotional Examinations

Promotional examinations shall be graded in accordance with Section (J) of this Rule.
Promotional applicants who receive a passing grade shall be granted additional credit
points for seniority, which shall determine the final score. No additional credit shall be
given for Efficiency Points or efficiency. The maximum number of additional credit
points available shall be ten (10) percent of the maximum examination test score.

Seniority credit shall be given based on continuous service with the City as follows: one
point is added for each of the first four years of an applicant's service and six-tenths of a
point is added for each year of service for the next ten years of service. No credit is
given for any years of service beyond fourteen years. For any half year of setvice, half
of the foregoing credit shall be given. For purposes of the subsection (N), "continuous
service" shall mean uninterrupted service with the City of Medina at the time of scoring
of the examination, except for interruptions of continuous service caused by mandatory
service in the “uniformed services" as defined in Rule VI(K). In promotional
examinations for sworn officers of the Medina Police Department, credit for seniority
shall be based only on continuous service in the Medina Police Department as a full-time
sworn officer. Any applicant taking an examination for the position of Chief of Police

shall not be given sentority points.

Efficiency Points or efficiency ratings will not be considered when determining the final
scores on examinations for the positions of Chief of Police or Chief of Fire.

When a tie exists after calculation of the final score, including seniority credit, then
seniority in the classification from which the promotion is sought shall determine the
order of the scores. If a tie still exists, then seniority in the department shall determine
the order of the scores. Seniority used to break ties shall be fotal service in the

department, not continuous.

(0)  Grading of Combined Open Competitive and Promotional Examinations

When the Commission holds a combined examination, promotional applicants who
receive passing grades shall be ranked on the eligible list ahead of the open competitive
applicants regardless of final passing grade. Open competitive applicants who have
received passing grades shall receive uniformed service credit in addition to the test score
in accordance with Section (K) of this Rule. Promotional applicants who have received
passing grades shall be granted additional credit points for seniority in accordance with

Section (N) of this Rule.

(P) Police Promotions

Vacancies in positions above the rank of Pairol Officer and below the rank of Chief shall
be filled by promotion from among persons holding positions in a rank lower than the
position to be filled. No person shall be appointed to such position without having first
completed a competitive promotional examination and serving at least two years in the

(04254658 -3} 11




Ord. 97-23
Exhibit A

Medina Police Department in the next lower rank (service for the purpose of this section
shall mean cumulative, as opposed to continuous, service). If there are fewer than two
persons holding positions in the next lower rank than the position to be filled who are
cligible and willing to compete, the Commission shall allow petsons holding positions
in the next lower rank who are cligible and willing to compete to take the promotional
examination. Promotional tests may include oral components as well as written. No
additional credit shall be given on a promotional examination in the Police Department

for Efficiency Points or efficiency.

Pursuant to the Medina Charter, promotional appointments in the Police Department
shall be made in accordance with the provisions of Ohio Revised Code Sec. 124.44

except as follows:

1. The Civil Service Commission shall cettify to the appointing authority the names
of the three persons on the eligible list having the highest passing rating. The
appointing authority shall fill such position by appointment of one of the three
persons certified. '

2. In the case of a vacancy in the position of Chief, the appointing authority
may admit two additional candidates to the examination provided those
candidates possess the job-related qualifications specified by the Commission.

(Q) Fire Service Promotion

Pursuant to the Medina Charter, promotional appointments in the Fire Department shall
be made in accordance with the provisions of Ohio Revised Code Sec. 124.45 except as

follows:

I The Civil Service Commission shall certify to the appointing authority the names
of the three persons on the eligible list having the highest passing rating. The
appointing authority shall fill such position by appointment of one of the three
persons certified. ‘

2, In the case of a vacancy in the position of Chief of the Fire Department, the
appointing authority may admit two additional candidates to the examination
provided those candidates possess the job-related qualifications specified by the

Commission.

No additional credit shall be given on a promotional examination in the Fire
Department for Efficiency Points or efficiency.

(04254658 -3} 12




Ord. 97-23
Exhibit A

(R) Police Lateral Transfer Hires

Experienced peace officers from other jurisdictions who have obtained and maintained
Basic Ohio Peace Officer Certification may be cligible for lateral transfer appointment as
a Patrol Officer. Patrol Officer applicants appointed as lateral transfer hires shall only be
appointed to the rank of Patrol Officer. Patrol Officer Poliee and Communication
Operator lateral transfer candidates shall be entitled to the Credit for Military
("Uniformed") Service to be added to their examination score as provided for in part K of
this Rule and any other credits to their examination scores as established by the
Commission pursuant to this Rule VL

(04254658 -3} 13




Ord. 97-23
Exhibit A

RULE VII
ELIGIBLE LISTS

(A) Posting of Lists

From the results of each competitive examination, the Commission shall prepare and
keep open to public inspection a list of the persons whose grade in any examination
meets or exceeds the established passing grade and who are otherwise eligible. Such
persons shall take rank upon the eligible list in the order of their respective grades. An
eligible list for a noncompetitive. examination will consist of an alphabetical listing of

qualified applicants.

The eligible list for lateral transfer Pokice Patrol Officers and Communication Operators
shall be kept separately from the eligible list for original appointment Pekee Patrol
Officers and Communication Operators.

(B) Duration of Lists

Eligible lists created by the Commission shall remain in force not longer than one (1)
year; however, the Commission may, at its discretion, extend the eligible list for a total
period not to exceed two (2) years or may abolish any list that has been in force for more
than six (6) months and hold a new examination whenever, in its judgment, the interest
of the public service so requires. No name shall remain on a list longer than two (2)

years,

The Commission shall have the sole discretion to determine the duration of any eligible

list for lateral transfer Police-Patrol-Officer applicants and may provide for a continuing
eligible list with no expiration date and with eligible candidates being placed on the
eligible list according to their test scores and credit points that are established at any

time.

All persons whose names appear on an existing list that is to be abolished before the
regular expiration date shall be notified and given an opportunity to compete in the new

examination process.

Eligible lists resulting from unassembled examinations shall remain in effect for one (1)
year from date of examination and, insofar as possible, notification of the expiration date
will be sent to those persons being removed from the list.

(C) Breaking Tied Grades

In the event two (2) or more applicants receive the same grade on an open competitive
examination, priority in the time of filing the application with the Commission shall
determine the order in which their names shall be placed on the eligible [ist; applicants
eligible for uniformed service credit shall receive priority in rank on the eligible list over

{04254658 -3} 14




Ord. 97-23
Exhibit A

non-veterans on the list with a rating equal to that of the veteran. Ties among applicants
receiving military service credit shall be decided by which application was filed earlier
with the Commission. (See Section (N) of Rule VI for breaking tied grades on

promotional examinations.)

(D) Transfer

At the discretion of the Commission, any cligible may at any time, by written request,
be transferred to the cligible list for a lower class in the same series requiring
qualifications of the same general character, ranked according to the eligible’ s original

grade.

(E) Change of Address

Each person on an eligible list shall file with the Commission a written notice of any
change of address, and failure to do so may be considered sufficient reason for not
certifying the eligible’s name to the appointing authorities for consideration for

appointment.

(F) Investigation and Disqualification of Eligibles

Upon the establishment of an eligible list, and except as otherwise prohibited by law, the
Commission may conduct or authorize an investigation as to whether the eligibles
possess the necessary standards of fitness, physical attributes, mental soundness, or other
qualifications required to perform the duties and responsibilities of the position sought.
The eligibles may be investigated before certification.

The investigation may include physical fitness examination, medical examination,
psychological and/or psychiatric examination, polygraph examination, background
investigation, personal interview, drug testing, or any other method necessary to
ascertain the applicant’s qualifications and abilities, as determined by the Commission.

If an eligible is found during the investigation to be unqualified or unsuitable for the
position, the Commission shall remove the person’s name from the eligible list. If the
Commission removes a name from an eligible list, the person shall be promptly notified
by certified mail (return receipt requested) or personal service or Fed-Ex (with signature
requested) or substantially, similar, commercial mailing system of the removal and
advised that an appeal may be filed within seven (7) calendar days after issuance of the
notice; however, no appeal may be made for reinstatement to an eligible list that has

expired or been revoked.

The Commission may reinstate the person to the eligible list upon a showing of just
cause. The Commission may dismiss the appeal if the person does not appear at the
scheduled hearing. If testimony is heard concerning the appeal, the Commission shall
have the witnesses placed under oath or affirmation of truthfulness, shall permit cross-
examination, and shall announce its conclusions of fact.

4

04254658 -3} 15




Ord. 97-23
Exhibit A

Where the Commission is unable for practical or legal reasons to conduct examinations
to determine whether applicants have medical or psychiatric conditions that would
prevent satisfactory performance of all essential functions of the position, the
Commission’s certification of an eligible shall not signify that the person meets all
requirements for the position relating to physical and psychological abilities.

(G) Revocation of List

An eligible list may be revoked and another examination ordered when the Commission
deems revocation to be advisable for reasons of errors, fraud, or obviously inappropriate
standards presctibed in connection with any examination. All eligible applicants in the
first examination shall be notified and shall be eligible to participate in the rescheduled
examination without filing a separate application; however, if the eligible list has been
in place for six (6) months or longer before being revoked, all applicants shall pay the
required filing fee. The revocation of any list and the reasons therefore shall be entered
in the minutes of the Commission, and any person on the list at the time of revocation

shall be so notified by mail.

[04254658 -3) 16




Ord. 97-23
Exhibit A

RULE VIII
APPOINTMENTS

Permanent appointments to all positions in the classified service that are not filled by promotion,
transfer, or reduction shall be made from those persons whose names are certified to the
appointing authority in accordance with the Civil Service Laws of the City and the Rules of the

Commission.

(A) Number of Names to Be Certified; Appointment from Other Appropriate Lists

1. The appointing authority of the department in which the position in the classified service
is to be filled shall notify the Commission of the fact, and, except as set forth below,
the Commission shall certify to the appointing authority the names and addresses of the
five (5) candidates standing highest on the eligible list for the class or grade to which the
position is classified. In the event that an eligible list becomes exhausted through
inadvertence or otherwise, and until a new list can be created or when no eligible list for
such position exists, names may be certified from eligible lists that the Commission
determines appropriate for the group or class in which the position to be filled is

classified.

2. In cases where there are fewer than five (5) names on an eligible list appropriate for
certification to any vacancy, such names shall be certified, and the appointing authority
may make selection from such certification or may reject the certification of fewer

than five (5) names.

3. The number of names to be certified shall be determined in the following manner:

a. For 1 through 4 vacancies, add 4 names to the number of vacancies.

b. For 5 through 8 vacancies, add 8 names to the number of vacancies.

c. For 9 through 12 vacancies, add 12 names to the number of vacancies.
d. For 13 through 16 vacancies, add 16 names to the number of vacancies.

4. With certain classifications (Patrol Officers & Communication Operators) permitted to
hire lateral transfer candidates, the appointing authority shall have the option to hire
from either the certified eligible list for original appointment Patrel-Officers candidates
or the certified eligible list for lateral transfer Patrol-Officess candidates. In the event
there is no eligible list in effect for original appointment for the needed classification
Patrel Officer, the Commission shall not be required to certify an eligible list for lateral
transfer Patrel-Offieer candidates to the appointing authority unless requested to do so by

the appointing authority.

5. Notwithstanding these provisions, the Commission shall certify the names of the highest
ten (10) eligible candidates for a position as Patrol Officer. If the Director of Public Safety
secks to fill more than one Patrol Officer position, the Commission shall certify sufficient

(04254658 -3} ' 17




Ord. 97-23
Exhibit A

narmes to allow each appointment to be selected from a group of ten (10) eligibles. (For
example, for 1 through 4 Patrol Officer vacancies, add nine (9) names to the number of
vacancies, for 5 through 8 Patrol Officer vacancies, add ecighteen (18) names to the

number of vacancies.)

(B) Certification Not More Than Three Times

A person certified from the same cligible list three (3) times to the same appointing
authority may be omitted from future certifications unless the appointing authority has
specifically requested certification of that person. A person is “certified,” for purposes
of this section, cach time an appointment is made from a certified list containing that

person’s name; however, if a person is certified when more than one (1) position is to be
filled, that person shall remain eligible through up to five (5) appointments from that
particular certified list. If fewer than five (5) appointments are made from that certified
list, the person shalfl be eligible for future certification until the person has been

considered for appointment five (5) times.

(C) Names Not to Be Certified for Appointment

The name of any person appearing on an eligible list who:

1. fails to report or arrange within seven (7) calendar days for an
interview with the appointing authority; '

2. fails to respond to a notice from the Commission within seven (7)
calendar days;

3. declines an appointment without reasons satisfactory to the Commission;
or

4. cannot be located by the postal authorities

shall not thereafter be certified to any appointing authority as eligible for appointment
unless a thoroughly satisfactory explanation of the circumstances is made to the
Commission, A person removed from eligibility in this manner shall be notified by
written notice sent by certified mail (return receipt requested), personal service, or Fed-
Ex (with signature requested) or substantially, similar, commetcial mailing system to the
Jast address provided by the applicant. Where an eligible person’s name appears on more
than one (1) list, appointment to a position in one (1) class shall be considered a waiver
for appointment from other eligible lists for classes of equal or lower salary.

(D) Objection by Appointing Authority

When an objection is made by an appointing authority that any person certified:

1. is unable to perform the essential functions of the position;
2. is cutrently a user of drugs of abuse;

{04254658 -3} 18




Ord. 97-23

Exhibit A

3. has been guilty of infamous or notoriously disgraceful conduct;

4. has been convicted of a felony or of a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude
or moral delinquency;

5. has been dismissed from a position in the civil service and removed for cause
or did not resign in good standing; '

6. has made a false statement of any material fact or practiced or atiempted to
practice any deception or fraud in an application or examination concerning
employment by the City or the City Schools;

7. has a record of excessive traffic citations and/or chargeable accidents, and
the position the individual is applying for requires driving; or

8. is unable to meet the Commission’s qualification standards

the Commission shall, if such objection is shown to be well taken, vote to strike the name
of such person from the eligible list and certify another name. Before striking the name
of such person from the eligible list and/or certifying another name, the Commission
shall notify such person by certified mail (return receipt requested) or by personal
service, or by Fed-Ex (with signature required) or other substantially, similar,
commercial mailing system. The applicant may appeal such objection to the
Commission within seven (7) calendar days after issuance of notification. If the person
fails to appear for the hearing, or upon being heard, fails to show just cause why the
Commission should reinstate the person’s name to the eligible list, removal will stand
and another name will be certified.

(E) Appointment from Certified List

Upon receipt from the Commission of a certified list of eligibles for appointment to a
position, the appointing authority shall fill such position by appointment of one (1) of
the five (5) persons certified. The appointing authority shall promptly report to the
Commission the name of the appointee, the title of the' position, the duties and
responsibilities of the position, the salary or compensation of the position, and such other
information as the Commission may require in order to keep its roster.

(F) Waiver of Certification

An eligible may waive certification by written notification to the Commission. A waiver
of certification shall remain in effect until withdrawn in writing, at which time the
eligible is reinstated to the position originally held on the eligible list. A waiver may not
exceed six (6) months, and may not be used more than two (2) times. After two (2)
waivers, or after six (6) months have passed on a waiver, the eligible’s name shall be
removed from the eligible list. Whenever one (1) or more of the eligibles who have been
certified waive certification or fail to respond to notice of certification, the Commission
shall supplement the certification from the eligible list by an equal number of additional

names.

(04254658 -3} 19




Ord, 97-23
Exhibit A

(G) Rejection of Appointment

An eligible who has declined appointment to a permanent position shall be removed from
the eligible list and shall not thereafter be certified for the same position from
that eligible list, unless a reason for declining the appointment is approved as satisfactory

by the Commission.

(H) Promotional Appointments

The appointing authority of the department in which a vacancy is to be filled by
promotion shall notify the Commission of the fact. If there is an eligible list for such
position, the Commission shall immediately certify to the appointing authority the names
of the three (3) persons standing highest on such list. The number to be certified shall be

determined in the following manner:

1. For 1 through 4 vacancies, add 2 names to the number of vacancies.
2. For 5 through 8 vacancies, add 4 names to the number of vacancies.

3. For 9 through 12 vacancies, add 6 names to the number of vacancies.

If there is no such list and the position that is vacant is deemed to require a competitive
examination, the Commission shall, within sixty (60) calendar days after notification,
conduct a competitive promotional examination for the position and shall certify to the
appointing authority the names of the persons heading the eligible list established as the

result of such examination.

Upon certification to the appointing authority, appointment shall be made within thirty
(30) calendar days. If the number of names eligible for certification is less than the
number provided for in this Section, the appointing authority shall make the appointment
from the number certified.

(I) Tempotary Promotional Appointment

If a vacancy oceurs in a higher position for which there is no eligible list, a temporary
promotion may be made from among the employees in the next lower classification upon
the request of the appointing authority and approval by the Commission; however, no
such temporary promotion shall become permanent or shall continue beyond the
establishment of an appropriate eligible list and an appointment therefrom.

{04254658 -3} ' 20




Ord. 97-23
' Exhibit A

(J) Temporary, Exceptional, and Provisional Appointments

1. Temporary Appoinfment

An appointing authority may appoint a qualified person for a temporary period
of service when the usual procedure of requisition and certification is not suitable
and when the need of service is urgent and necessary to prevent the loss of public
property, serious inconvenience to the public, or damaging delay to the public
service. The temporary appointment shall not exceed nine hundred sixty (960)
hours worked in a calendar year and shall not be counted as a part of the
probationary service in the event of subsequent appointment to a permanent

position.

Temporary appointments made necessary by reason of sickness or disability shall
not continue beyond such period of sickness or disability.

2. Bxceptional Appointment

In case of a vacancy in a position in the classified service where peculiar and
exceptional qualifications of a scientific, managerial, professional, or educational
character are required, and upon satisfactory evidence that for specified reasons
competition in such special case is impracticable and that the position can best
be filled by a selection of some designated person of high and recognized
attainments in such qualities, the Commission may waive the Rules, but no
waiver shall be general in its application. :

3. Provisional Appointment
a. Procedure for Appointment

Whenever there are urgent reasons to fill a vacancy and the Commission is
unable, upon requisition, to certify eligibles from an eligible list, the
Commission shall notify the appointing authority, who may then appoint a
person to fill the vacancy. The appointing authority shall send notice of such
appointment, with complete data for the official roster, to the Commission.

b. Tenure

Regardless of the length of service by a provisional appointee, a provisional
appointment shall continue in force only until a permanent appointment can

(04251658 -3} 21




Ord. 97-23
Exhibit A

be made as a result of a certification by the Commission. No provisional
appointment is valid once a certification can be made from an appropriate
eligible list, regardless of whether the employee holding the provisional
appointment may be eligible for permanent employment as hereinafter
provided. A provisional employee shall serve a probationary period and may
also be removed for cause.

¢. Procedure upon Establishment of an Eligible List

The Commission shall remove any provisional appointee who does not take
the examination held for the position, or who takes the examination and does
not pass, from the position within fifteen (15) working days affer the
establishment of the eligible list for the position, Immediately upon
establishing the eligible list, the Commission shall notify the employee and
the appointing authority for the position of'the termination of the provisional

appointment.

Before establishment of an eligible list by the Commission, it shall certify for
appointment as a permanent employee any provisional appointee who
satisfactorily completed the probationary period or at least six (6) months of
service, whichever is longer, before the examination was held for the position
and who passed the examination. The employee shall have all the rights of a
permanent employee and shall not be required to complete an additional

probationary period.

The Commission shall place on the eligible list and certify for consideration
by the appointing authority in the normal manner any provisional appointee
who had not completed the probationary period or six (6) months of service,
whichever is longer, by the time of examination for the position and who
passed the examination. In the event of a tied grade, however, the Commission
shall consider the candidate’s length of provisional service in the position
before considering priority of filing application. Regardless of whether the
provisional employee is ecligible for inclusion in a certification upon
establishment of the eligible list, the Commission shall notify the employee
and the appointing authority that the provisional appointment shall be
terminated within fifteen (15) working days of establishment of the eligible
list and issuance of a certification of eligibles.

4. Substitute Employees

(04254658 -3}

A substitute employee may work in place of a permanent or provisional employee
who is ill or on vacation, leave of absence, or personal leave. The name of the
permanent or provisional employee for whom the substitute employee is working
shall be designated on the payroll. A substitute employee acquires no rights with
respect to the position being filled.

22




Ord. 97-23
Exhibit A

5. Police Patrol Offieer Lateral Transfer Hires

Seniority for lateral transfer Patrol Officers and Communication Operators shall
be based on the most carrent date of hire by the City. Seniority for promotion or
lay-off purposes for lateral transfer Patrol Officers and Communication
Operators shall also begin with the most current date of appointment as a Patrol
Officer or Communication Operator with the City Police Department.

(K) Probation

1.

2.

{04254658 -3}

Purpose

The probationary period shail be regarded as an integral part of the examination
process and shall be used to closely obsetve the employee’s work, to give the
employee full opportunity to demonstrate successful performance on the job, and
to temove any employee whose performance does not meet required work
standards. No appointment or promotion shall be deemed final until the appointee

has satisfactorily served the probationary period.

Probationary Period

All original appointments, including provisional appointments, shall be for a
probationary period, from first work day, of not less than six (6) months (sixty

(60) days for City Schools Civil Service employees) except that the following original
appointments shall serve a probationary period of one (1) year or period stated in the
collective bargaining agreement, in force at time of hire, for any individual stated

below who is a member of a union:

Appointees to Patrol Officer in the Police Department
Appointees to Secretary to the Civil Service Commission
Appointees to Police Communication/Records Supervisor
Appointees to Police Communications Operator
Appointees to Police Records Clerk

e

Service as a provisional employee in the same or similar class shall be included in the
probationary period. Time spent on approved leave, including jury duty, shall not be
counted as part of the probationary period.

Lateral transfer Patrol Officers and lateral transfer Communication Operators shall
serve a probationary period of one (1) year. Following successful completion of the
probationary period, employees selected through the lateral transfer process shall be
entitled to all other rights attributed to the classified service,

At the request of the appointing authority, the Commission may extend an employee’s

probationary period, provided that the request is submitted at least one (1) week before
the expiration of the probationary period and that the employee agrees in writing to

23




Ord. 97-23
Exhibit A

the extension; however, the Commission shall not extend the probationary period for
longer than six (6) months. If a timely request for extension is denied and the
probationary period has by that time expired, the time deadline for the appointing
authority to act during the probationary period shall be stayed and the appointing
authority shall immediately complete the final probationary evaluation.

A provisional appointee’s probationary period cannot be extended past the date
scheduled for the examination for the appointee’s position.

3. Probationary Period for Promotional Appointments

All permanent promotional appointments in the classified service shall serve a
probationary period of forty-five (45) calendar days from the date of such promotion
(thirty (30) days for City Schools Civil Service employees), except that the following
promotional appointment shall serve a probationary period of one (1) year:

Appointees to Police Lieutenant
Appointees to Police Chief
Appointees to Fire Licutenant
Appointees to Fire Captain
Appointees to Fire Operations Captain
Appointees to Fire Assistant Chief
Appointees to Fire Marshall
Appointees to Fire Chief
~ Appointees to Secretary to the Civil Service Commission

e R N

If, during that period, the service of the employee so appointed is not satisfactory,
the employee may be reduced to the position from which the promotion was made.

4, Probation Reports

All classified employees shall be evaluated during the probationary period. On a form
furnished by the Commission, the probationary employee will be evaluated at a point
halfway through the first half of the probationary period, at the halfway point, and
within the last thirty (30) calendar days of the probationary period.

The probationer will receive a copy of each evaluation.

On the final probationary evaluation, the appointing authority shall indicate
acceptance or rejection of the employee. This report must be delivered to the
Commission by the end of the probationary period, but subject fo the probation
extension, denial, and exception provisions of paragraph 2 above. If no such report is
submitted, the employee’s appointment automatically becomes permanent.

{04254658 -3) 24




WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

RCA 23-103-5/8

ORDINANCE NO. 98-23

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE TO
AMERICAN RAMP COMPANY FOR THE RENOVATION OF
THE REAGAN PARK SKATEPARK.

In accordance with ORC 125.04 the City of Medina, Ohio requested authority to
participate in State contracts which the Department of Administrative Services has
entered into for the purchase of supplies, services, equipment and certain materials;

and

The request for participation provides for the waiving of the state and local
competitive bidding requirements and allows the City the ability to purchase from
centralized contracts; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF MEDINA, OHIO:

SEC. 1: That the expenditure of $249,360.84 for ramps and features from American Ramp
Company under the Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing Program Contract #112420-
ARC, is hereby authorized for the Parks Department.
SEC. 2: That the funds to cover this purchase, in the estimated amount of $249,360.84, are
available utilizing American Rescue Plan Act funds in Account No. 171-0310-54411.
SEC. 3: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed by
law.
PASSED: SIGNED:
President of Council
ATTEST: APPROVED:
Clerk of Council
SIGNED:

Mayor

Ord. 98-23




